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Principal Office

24th Floor

Emperor Group Centre
288 Hennessy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

Registrar (in Bermuda)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Registrar (in Hong Kong)
Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited

Dah Sing Bank Limited

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Key Dates

Annual Results Announcement
Book Close Dates for
Final Dividend
Record Dates
— For 2018 AGM
— For Final Dividend
Annual General Meeting
Payment of Final Dividend

7 December 2017
6 and 7 February 2018

24 January 2018

7 February 2018

30 January 2018

27 February 2018
(HK1.52 cents per share)

Corporate Communications
This Annual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is

available to any shareholder of the Company (“Shareholder(s)”)
either in printed form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (http://www.hkexnews.com) and the
Company. In order to protect the environment, the Company highly
recommends the Shareholders to receive electronic copy of this
Annual Report. Shareholders may have the right to change their
choice of receipt of our future Corporate Communications at any
time by reasonable notice in writing to the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or by
email at is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
S 255 S

For the year ended
30 September

B E9AS0RIEFE
2017 2016 Changes
20174 20164 BE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHERT TET
Total revenue
gl A 1,241,000 986,215 + 25.8%
;ﬁ%ﬂcmg 837,521 773,402 +8.3%
Brokerage 132,961 109,206 21.8%
(SR RS ’ ' Telen
Placing & Underwriting o
2 £ £ 0 414 203,708 88,216 + 130.9%
Corporate Finance
PERRE 66,810 15,391 +334.1%
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company o
KAV NFEAE > R F 659,185 525,621 +25.4%
Earnings per share — basic and diluted (HK cents) o
SREF — B A LI G5il) 9:96 895 +1.3%
Total dividends per share (HK cents) 2.90 2.48 + 16.9%

FRA S AR GBIl
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Established in 1993, Emperor Capital Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) is a renowned Hong Kong based financial
institution providing a wide range of financial services including
(i) commercial and personal lending as well as margin and
initial public offering (“IPO”) financing; (ii) brokerage, wealth
management and asset management; (iii) placing and
underwriting services for listed issuers; and (iv) corporate
finance advisory services. The Company was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) in April 2007.

A
L&

Over the past decade, the Group has made great strides in
transforming to an interest income based financial institution. The
core strength of the Group lies in its robust business model, with
diverse income streams to withstand increasingly complex market
conditions. Being recognised by the capital market for its solid
performance, the Group has become one of the constituent stocks
of MSCI HK Small Cap Index, since 1 December 2015. The Group
currently operates 10 branches in Hong Kong, and three liaison
offices in mainland China.

MARKET REVIEW

During the year ended 30 September 2017 (the “Year”), the global
financial markets saw positive momentum on the back of improving
economic fundamentals in major developed markets. In the United
States (the “U.S."), the post-election stock rally extended into 2017
and the major indexes reached all-time highs in November 2017,
amid investor optimism about pro-growth policy under President
Donald Trump. U.S. consumer confidence remained positive and
investment intentions were strong.

Underpinned by improvements in the global economic outlook and
upbeat corporate earnings, the Hong Kong stock markets were
buoyant. During the Year, the average daily turnover in the Hong
Kong securities market increased by 13% to HK$77.6 billion (2016:
HK$68.6 billion).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The low interest rate environment in Hong Kong continued in
2017, given the ample liquidity in the banking system. While the
operating environment was challenging, restrictions on bank
lending imposed by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority have
created opportunities for licensed money lenders. Despite the
upward US interest rate cycle, Hong Kong residential property
prices performed strongly given solid local buying interest. With
value appreciation of properties, property refinancing has become
a popular financing channel enabling borrowers to access funds to
capture other investment opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Review

During the Year, the Group's revenue registered growth of 25.8%
to HK$1,241.0 million (2016: HK$986.2 million), driven by growth
across all segments. Profit for the Year attributable to owners of
the Company grew by 25.4% to HK$659.2 million (2016: HK$525.6
million) with a net profit margin of 53.1% (2016: 53.3%). Basic
earnings per share were HK9.96 cents (2016: HK8.95 cents). The
board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the “Directors”)
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.52 cents per
share (2016: HK1.28 cents). Together with the interim dividend of
HK1.38 cents per share, the total dividends per share for the Year
will amount to HK2.90 cents (2016: HK2.48 cents).

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations mainly by cash generated
from operations and borrowings, as well as proceeds raised
from issuance of bonds and equity financing exercises. As at
30 September 2017, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities were HK$9,318.4 million (as at 30 September 2016:
HK$8,042.3 million) and HK$2,793.1 million (as at 30 September
2016: HK$2,950.1 million), respectively. As at 30 September 2017,
aggregate of bank balances, cash and pledged bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$674.1 million (as at 30 September
2016: HK$590.3 million), which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”").
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As at 30 September 2017, the carrying amount of the Company’s
outstanding bonds was HK$1,589.1 million (as at 30 September
2016: HK$1,570.2 million). Principal amounts of HK$ bonds and
United States dollars (“US$”) bonds were HK$1,521.2 million and
US$10.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$78.8 million)
respectively. With both maturity dates fall within 2019, the HK$
bonds carry coupon rates ranging between 5.0% and 5.25% per
annum whilst the US dollar bonds carry a coupon rate of 4.5% per
annum.

As at 30 September 2017, the short-term bank borrowings of
the Group decreased to HK$328.5 million (as at 30 September
2016: HK$550.0 million). These bank borrowings were secured
by corporate guarantees from the Company, of which a total of
HK$315.0 million was further secured by pledged bank deposits of
the Group. These bank borrowings were denominated in HK$ and
carried interest rates approximating market rates. Together with the
bonds, the total borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$1,917.6
million (as at 30 September 2016: HK$2,120.2 million). The gearing
ratio decreased to 37.4% (as at 30 September 2016: 50.0%;
calculated as a percentage of total borrowings over total equity of
the Group). The Group did not have any material foreign exchange
exposure as at 30 September 2017.

In December 2016, in order to strengthen the Shareholders’
portfolio of the Company and provide further funding to support
the Company’s continuous development and business growth,
the Group issued a total of 612,900,000 new shares at HK$0.66
per share to a subsidiary of China Taiping Insurance Holdings
Company Limited (Stock Code: 966.HK), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange and ultimately controlled by China Taiping
Insurance Group Limited, a PRC state-owned financial and
insurance group. The aggregate net proceeds of HK$404.5
million has been used as intended for (i) expansion of money
lending business which include the commercial and personal
lending as well as margin and IPO financing, and (ii) repayment of
outstanding loans.

With the Group’s sufficient bank balances and cash, its available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$2,090.0 million, as well as the
proceeds raised from the issuance of bonds and equity financing
exercises, the Board considers the Group has sufficient working
capital for its operation and future development.

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 September 2017, bank deposit of the Group with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$160.0 million (as at 30
September 2016: HK$110.0 million) was pledged to a bank as
security for banking facilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the years, the Group has successfully transformed
from a local brokerage house to an integrated one-stop
financial institution, providing a range of financial services
designed to facilitate investments, strategic transactions and
fundraising activities. During the Year, the Group has strived to
comprehensively leverage synergies across business lines and
derive maximum corporate value. The Group was able to pursue a
more balanced mix of businesses, to diversify its revenue structure
and capitalise on the strong market conditions. The Group'’s
diverse business model contributed towards a positive operational
performance, with all segments reporting growth at a healthy pace.

Financing

The Group’s financing segment derives interest income from
commercial and personal lending as well as margin and IPO
financing. The loans granted to customers range from short-term
unsecured loans (e.g. tax loan, bridging loan, term loan, personal
loan) to long-term secured loans (e.g. property mortgage). Built on
a renowned reputation for delivering professional and personalised
loan services, the Group has developed a niche in the loan market,
providing corporate and retail clients with tailored liquidity solutions
to meet their corporate goals and personal needs.

Thanks to the successful marketing campaigns, the Group
has further penetrated the property mortgage market, with a
considerable increase in the number of new mortgage contracts.
Meanwhile, the Group has expanded its team, which comprises
specialists with technical expertise and extensive experience in the
provision of personal loan services.

Revenue from the financing segment grew by 8.3% to HK$837.5
million (2016: HK$773.4 million), accounting for 67.5% (2016:
78.4%) of the Group's total revenue.

Brokerage

The Group currently provides brokerage services for securities,
futures and options traded on exchanges in Hong Kong, mainland
China (via Shanghai- and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect
schemes respectively) and major overseas countries, as well as
wealth management and asset management services.

Emperor Capital Group Limited &5 387245 B A R A 7
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS % B J& i) i B 20 Br

Hong Kong stock market activity remained buoyant amid positive
market sentiment during the Year. Revenue from brokerage
services recorded growth of 21.8%, to HK$133.0 million (2016:
HK$109.2 million). The segment accounted for 10.7% (2016:
11.1%) of total revenue.

As at 30 September 2017, the Group operated 10 branches in
Hong Kong, covering key commercial and popular residential
areas with convenient pedestrian access. The Group also runs
three liaison offices, in Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. In
addition to branches, the Group offers web-based and mobile
trading platforms which enable real-time transaction and
investment portfolio monitoring.

The Group continues to expand its product offerings on a timely
basis in response to changes in a dynamic financial market. Since
after the launch of the Shanghai-Hong Kong and Shenzhen-Hong
Kong Stock Connect schemes in recent years, the Group has
included Northbound trading services, enabling investors to trade
eligible stocks listed in Shanghai Stock Exchange and Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. The introduction of Northbound trading services
has facilitated investors’ accessibility to China market, thereby
enriching their investment opportunities.

The Group’s wealth management division provides advices
regarding a wide array of investment services, including
securities, mutual funds, insurance-linked products, and real
estate investment. In its asset management arm, apart from
running private equity fund, the Group also provides customised
discretionary investment services to its customers.

Placing and Underwriting

With a highly experienced team of professionals, the Group offers
placing and underwriting services, and acts as placing agents and
underwriters for Hong Kong listed companies.

During the Year, the Group secured a number of primary and
secondary market financing projects. Revenue from the placing
and underwriting segment more than doubled to HK$203.7 million
(2016: HK$88.2 million), accounting for 16.4% (2016: 8.9%) of
total revenue. The Group served as placing agents in equity and
debt placing deals and IPO-related transactions. The Group also
participated in underwriting rights issue exercises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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During the Year, the Group acted as Bookrunner and Lead
Manager in the share placing for the listing of Bar Pacific Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8432.HK), which was listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange in January 2017.

Corporate Finance

The division holds a full corporate finance licence under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, allowing it to advise on
Takeovers Code related transactions and undertake sponsor work
for IPOs in addition to general corporate finance advisory services.
Apart from IPO-related services, the Group offers advisory
services for corporate transactions including placing, rights issue,
corporate restructuring and merger and acquisition.

Riding on its strong ties with small to medium-sized enterprises,
the Group has engaged in a number of corporate transactions
and IPO projects during the Year. Revenue from the corporate
finance segment increased more than three-fold to HK$66.8 million
(2016: HK$15.4 million), accounting for 5.4% (2016: 1.6%) of total
revenue.

OUTLOOK

The expansion of mutual market access schemes, including the
launch of Bond Connect programme in July this year, has affirmed
China’s commitment to liberalising its financial market for global
investors. MSCI’s long-awaited decision to include mainland China
A-shares in its benchmark emerging markets index also embraced
the positive changes in the accessibility of China’s capital market.
In China’s journey of opening up its financial market, Hong Kong’s
unique position as a gateway connecting China and international
markets will be further reinforced. The Group, as one of the
integrated financial service providers in Hong Kong, is optimistic
regarding its long-term business prospects.
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The Group intends to explore new opportunities spanning various
loan products. In order to optimise its loan portfolio and diversify
the credit risk inherent in the entire portfolio, the Group will
accelerate the expansion of mortgage lending. While maximising
the rate of return, the Group strives to operate with a sound credit-
management process and ensure adequate controls over credit
risk. The Group is also committed to maintaining long-standing
customer relationships and constantly seeking new customers.

The year 2017 is a milestone for the Group as it marks the 10th
anniversary of the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange. Our
strong performance recognised the success of our diversification
strategy, which has consistently grown the business volume and
helped to deliver solid returns. The Group is confident that our
integrated business model and diversification strategies will keep
us well positioned to capitalise on the emerging opportunities. The
Group will continue to accelerate the business development and
expansion, to further advance the next stage of growth.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 30 September 2017, the Group had 114 (2016: 118) account
executives and 183 employees (2016: 152). Total staff costs
(including directors’ remuneration) were approximately HK$111.8
million (2016: HK$93.8 million). Employees’ remuneration was
determined in accordance with individual's responsibility,
competence and skills, experience and performance as well as
market pay level. Staff benefits include medical and life insurance,
provident funds and other competitive fringe benefits.

To continue to provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the
Company adopted a new share option scheme during the Year
which replaced the old share option scheme expired in September
2017, particulars of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Options” in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Group is committed to the principles of good corporate
governance, and strives to integrate corporate social responsibility
(“CSR”") into its business strategy and management approach.
This report aims to provide the Group's stakeholders with an
overview of the Group's efforts regarding environmental, social and
governance impacts arising from its daily operations.

CSR Committee

A CSR Committee has been set up to formulate policies and
practices on CSR-related matters, with focus on the areas of
community welfare, environment and employees’ well-being. It
encourages and supports employee engagement in various CSR
initiatives, to ensure the Company’s CSR commitment is properly
fulfilled. It has overall responsibility for implementing, reviewing
and monitoring the Company’s CSR policy.

EHS Committee

In addition, the Group is dedicated to cultivating a green, healthy
and safety culture through the concerted efforts of all staff. Aiming
to promote environmental, health and safety (“EHS”) culture in the
workplace, the EHS Committee, comprising representatives from
the Group, has also been set up and is responsible for fostering
employee EHS participation in the workplace. It also plays a
vital role in the development of EHS policies and programs on a
continuous basis. A written EHS policy was established to provide
a balanced framework for the EHS measures in order to achieve
the following objectives:

e  Ensure compliance with all applicable EHS legislation;

e Reduce quantities of waste and pollutants discharging to the
sea, land and atmosphere;

e Promote EHS awareness among staff through training,
workshops and
programs;

e Provide a green,
healthy and safe
workplace for
staff;

e  Optimise energy
use efficiency;
and

e Continuously
improve EHS
performance.
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Key Relationships with Major Stakeholders

The Group continues to engage with its employees, customers,
suppliers, investors, Shareholders, and other stakeholders through
different channels to develop mutually beneficial relationship and
promote sustainability.

The Group places a strong emphasis on employees’ well-being, as
well as training and development opportunities. For details, please
refer to “Health and Safety”, “Work-life Balance” and “Development
and training” sections below.

The Group is committed to delivering excellent customer
services to its customers. For details, please refer to the “Product
Responsibility and Customer Services” section below.

The Company partners with service providers that reflect its values
and commitment, and maintains solid relationships with them. For
details, please refer to the “Supply Chain Management” section
below.

The Company maintains ongoing dialogues with its investors
and Shareholders. For details, please refer to the section
“Communication with Shareholders” on page 63 of the Corporate
Governance Report.
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Group photo at the 10% Listing Anniversary Dinner of Emperor Capital Group
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION A REERE

Environmental Policies and Performance

During the Year, the Group continued making its best
endeavours to protect the environment in its business
activities and workplace. The Group also educates its
employees on their awareness of promoting a green
environment. The Group seeks to identify and manage
environmental impacts attributable to its operations, in order
to minimise these impacts if possible. Various measures
have been adopted to reduce energy and other resource
use, minimise waste and increase recycling, and promote
environmental protection in its supply chain and marketplace.
These measures are discussed in the “Use of Resources” and
“The Environment and Natural Resources” sections below.

In May 2017, the Company has been awarded an “Indoor
Air Quality Certification — Good Class” by the Environmental
Protection Department under its voluntary Indoor Air Quality
Certification Scheme for Offices and Public Places. The
recognition signifies the Group's efforts on creating greener
environment through indoor air quality management.

Use of Resources

Global warming and climate change are among the major
environmental problems in every part of the world. The Group
aims to maximise energy conservation in its branches and
offices by promoting efficient use of resources and adopting
green technologies. To enhance overall energy efficiency, the
Group continually upgrades its lighting and air-conditioning
systems. In the head office, air-conditioning systems are
equipped with smart sensors to automatically adjust the
temperature and cooling speed, resulting in a comfortable
working environment while saving energy. In the Group’s
flagship Mongkok branch, energy-efficient LED light strips are
adopted in the LED advertising panel. During the Year, the
Group has further replaced fluorescent tubes and spotlights
with environmental friendly LED tubes in Mongkok branch.

In addition, LED advertising panels are switched off
during non-business hours, to minimise light pollution and
reduce energy consumption. To identify energy efficiency
opportunities, the Group measures and records the energy
consumption intensity from time to time.
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ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017 4E#}

RBEBUR ) R Bl

RAFE  KEBBER NEER G R TIE
SEBIRIR T{E- $E@7T$ﬁ§ﬁ,§\l$@ﬂ
M EEHEITE CIRIB R E R, - N EE ) 2
NEBHEREBEBTRNREZE BREZ
2 ?é%i@@:ﬁtﬂaiﬂi REED RIS AR KR

‘ﬂﬂfﬁf/ﬁtﬂﬁk ﬁi%EPTE TTRIR % FH 18
AR T TERMA] & BRERRAETR
IjO

o & = 0
T8

ymy

R2017F5 7 BRIRIREZRIFE B FE M
ERABHSERZE ﬁ%%ifﬁmﬁ%mzk
;MEM;WTjﬁﬁﬁmé — RFH] -
D/ZIEHL/\FM-L THb%Z’K;EN@}Ei@k E EW ﬁ
= BERSIRENE

EUN
N
g

B H

2R MRIRECE RS SRS E B HY
BARIRHE - A REREEREZAE R L
MR BRI EETQﬁT%ﬁ&#M“*ﬁLE
Ei%ﬁ’ﬁ%’ﬂﬁ%;ﬁ°Z%Tm%%éhmﬁxﬁlf REE
B b T HL AR AR K 72 98 S AT o NV RIAR ER - 225
R A ﬁE@FEa%LAQEEuﬂEﬁ/%V&/vﬁH
HE fxiﬁﬁﬁ%éﬁ’ﬂlﬂﬁi** EHETE 2 TIER
HoRAKEH ABEE DT LEDESHEAE
PRAIERBELEDRE 5k o IO AN & - KR (B 2 5 —
SR AT E MEEEIRRIRIRLED

JE A6

ﬁt@l\ LEDE S IE & R i - ARSI
o] n&ﬁy\ﬂiﬁb/ﬁ/ﬁ%% Egéﬁhﬂﬁwﬁ)&
wmAA A AEBETREE R EFELER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT B#3i- it & REEHE

The Environment and Natural Resources

Creating a paperless working environment not only reduces
environmental damage but also fits commercial goals, as
it can save physical space, facilitate information sharing
via IT networks, and reduce complicated documentation
procedures. In recent years, the Group has implemented
paperless internal human resources processing — such
as employee time sheets, payrolls and leave application.
Moreover, duplex printing and copying has become the norm
within the Group, which greatly reducing paper consumption
and saving costs. Usage data of office printing machines is
regularly collected and assessed, to monitor the efficiency of
a paperless environment.

Partnering with its printing solutions provider, the Group has
adopted “Follow You” print solution in the headquarters,
helping the Group become more cost efficient through
smarter printing. The print solution enables the Group to
achieve environmental objectives by reducing unclaimed
printing, as printing is released only upon presentation of
a staff card from that particular staff who gives the printing
instruction.

The Group aims to promote environmental awareness, not
only within the organisation, but also through engaging
customers, encouraging a co-operative approach to
minimising its environmental impact. The formalities for
opening a securities account involve a considerable amount
of paperwork. In view of this, the account opening form has
been modified to minimise paper usage. To encourage the
migration of customers’ account statements from a print
format to electronic version, a surcharge is applied if clients
opt to receive paper statements. As at 30 September 2017,
approximately 80% of the Group’s customers were receiving
electronic statements. In addition, the Group distributes the
latest promotion information and notices via email and SMS
instead of printed mails.

The Company strongly recommends Shareholders to
access its corporate communications, including financial
reports, through the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, instead of in printed form. By introducing electronic
means of corporate communications to Shareholders, the
quantity of printed materials has been considerably reduced.
This paperless practice thus helps to protect the environment,
as well as save costs for stationery, printing and administrative
charges etc. A majority of individual Shareholders access
financial reports and other Company documents via electronic
means.
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B. WORKPLACE QUALITY
Workforce

The Group believes that a motivated and balanced workforce
is crucial for building a sustainable business model and
delivering long-term returns.

As at 30 September 2017, the permanent employees of
the Group totalled 183, working in the headquarters and
branches in Hong Kong, and in the representative offices in
mainland China.

The demographics of the Group’s workforce (as at 30
September 2017) are summarised below:

By Region
H [ 43 i
Mainland China
v Ay 3
M Hong Kong
R

The Group has a diverse workforce in terms of gender and
age, providing a variety of ideas and levels of competency
that contribute to the Group’s success. The Group is firmly
committed to gender equality, and therefore particularly
encourages female participation in the Board, and at
managerial and operational levels. Women represent
approximately 46% of the total employees in the Group.

The management believes that people are important assets
for the Group, and remains committed to attracting and
retaining talent with diverse backgrounds for achieving
sustainable growth. As at 30 September 2017, approximately
36% of the staff had worked for the Group for five years or
more. Service awards were presented at the Group’s annual
dinner, as tributes to staff who had contributed for 10, 15 and
20 years. Staff turnover rate among managerial positions is
relatively low, reflecting a high level of employee satisfaction
and engagement with the Group.

The Group encourages breastfeeding and provides
a designated private space to support lactation of
breastfeeding women in flexible schedule during working
hours. These “Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace” measures
demonstrate the Group’s commitment to the well-being of its
employees and their families.
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Health and Safety

The Group values the health and well-being of staff. In order to
provide employees with health coverage, staff are entitled to
benefits including medical and life insurance as well as other
competitive fringe benefits.

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective
and congenial work environment for its staff. Adequate
arrangements and training courses are provided to ensure
a healthy and safe working environment. Health and safety
training is provided to all employees on induction. Office
memos and guidelines on occupational health and safety are
issued, and keep all employees informed. Workshops and
seminars on different topics are regularly held, to present the
latest information and raise awareness of occupational health
and safety issues for employees. On 10 November 2016,
staff are invited to attend a talk given by an occupational
health nurse regarding first-aid care in the workplace. The
Group promotes emergency preparedness and arranges well-
stocked first-aid kits in offices and branches to protect the
health and safety of workers in the event that they are injured
at work. During the Period, the Group also has placed an
automated external defibrillator in office to rescue potential
victims of sudden cardiac arrest.

Every case of injury (if any) is required to be reported to the
Group Human Resources Department and be individually
assessed under the internal guideline procedures. No
accident nor injury were reported during the Year.

Work-life Balance

The Group believes that maintaining a work-life balance is
essential for sustainability and a sound body and mind for
every employee. To support employees in maintaining work-
life balance, the Group actively provides a range of activities
and initiatives to enhance the health and well-being of its
employees:
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Fun Rafting, October 2016

K L 4E3EE X RE 8 58 - 20165104

During a leisure day trip, staff and their family members boarded rafts after
attending a briefing by a qualified rafting coach. Participants immersed
themselves in the amazing scenery of the countryside and cooled off during a
late summer day.
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Be a Running Man, November 2016 — January 2017

Be a Running Man » 2016%F11H £20174E1H

Jogging is one of the easiest and most enjoyable ways to maintain a
healthy lifestyle. Coached by Mr. Gi Ka Man, a Hong Kong half-Marathon
record holder, a well-structured 10-week jogging program helped the
participants to improve their jogging technique, pace, speed and fitness.
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Stretching Classes, February — March 2017

AT 9 I e YEE B 8 B U - 201742 H £3H

In cooperation with Hong Kong Stretching Exercise Association, two classes are organised to educate employees on
performing proper stretches, helping them to reduce the incidences of muscle strain and sprains.
AEEREEFREDESAMMERE HEE TETERNRRED  UBMBIIREN ARG RRIGHES -

Green Monday

ey —

In the “Green Monday Fruit Day” campaign, an item of fresh fruit is given to
each staff member on the first working day of every week. “Green Monday
Light Lunch” was also launched in February 2017, allowing staff to order a
healthy and delicious lunch, such as sandwiches and salads, at a special
price. These measures helped staff to raise awareness about eco-friendly
diets and maintaining a healthy lifestyle.
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Rock Climbing Adventures, September 2017

BE K - 20174891

In collaboration with YMCA, a 4-lesson rock climbing course led by an experienced
coach was organised for participants to learn basic climbing techniques.
Upon completion of the course and passing the test, the participants received
Sport Climbing Level 1 Certificate from China Hong Kong Mountaineering and
Climbing Union. Though climbing activities, participants built their confidence and
strengthened problem solving skills in face of adverse conditions.
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Development and Training

The Group recognises the importance of skilled and
professionally trained employees to its business growth
and future success. Given the growing complexity and
sophistication of the marketplace, the Group supports its staff
to develop and enhance their knowledge, skills and work
capability. The Group encourages and provides subsidies
to employees at all levels to pursue educational or training
opportunities that achieve personal growth and professional
development.

As the Group retains its position at the forefront of the vibrant
market, the staff actively pursue professional trainings to
enhance their technical knowledge and keep abreast of the
latest developments. During the Year, the Group conducted
in-house seminars and training covering anti-money
laundering, updates to laws, codes, rules and regulations,
and other topics related to licensed regulated activities,
in order to maintain the highest standard of professional
conduct and ethics by employees. The seminars and training
were recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission
(“SFC”), enabling licensed staff to fulfil the requirements for
Continuous Professional Training. During the Year, the Group’s
staff devoted around 1,459 hours onto self-learning and
training, representing approximately 8 hours per employee.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

The Group values mutually beneficial and longstanding
relationships with its suppliers. The Group works closely
with a number of services providers offering trading platform
systems and financial information solutions. The selection of
suppliers is based on criteria such as price, stability of the
trading platform, customer service team responsiveness,
capability and experience, with preference given to
potential suppliers that demonstrate their commitment to the
environment.

Product Responsibility and Customer Services

The Group has earned trusted relationships with its broad
customer base through providing dedicated customer
services.

The Group makes every effort to promptly and fairly
investigate and resolve all disputes and complaints lodged by
customers, according to clearly written internal procedures.
During the Year, one customer complaint concerning dealing
in securities was reported.
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The Group has set up designated channels - including
hotline, facsimile and email — for clients to lodge complaints.
All complaints received through these channels are diverted
to and handled by the Complaint Officer. The hotline numbers
and email address are shown on the daily and monthly client
statements, to ensure clients are aware of the communication
channels for lodging complaints. Upon receipt of a complaint,
the Complaint Officer will investigate in a timely manner
and report the findings to senior management. Senior
management shall review the complaint and determine
whether internal controls and procedures need to be
enhanced or other appropriate action is required to be taken.

As a comprehensive financial services provider, the Group
comprises teams of professionals specialising in a wide
array of services including brokerage, asset management,
financing, and corporate finance advisory. As at 30
September 2017, 66 employees and 114 account executives
of the Group were licensed with the SFC in various regulated
activities: dealing in securities (RA 1), dealing in futures
contracts (RA 2), advising on securities (RA 4), advising
on futures contracts (RA 5), advising on corporate finance
(RA 6), and asset management (RA 9) or registered with
Professional Insurance Brokers Association.

During the Year, as a result of its dedicated services and
professionalism, the Group received the following awards:

—  Capital Merits of Achievements in Banking and Finance
Awards 2016
Capital Magazine, October 2016

—  Qutstanding Corporate Strategy Award 2017
East Week, September 2017

Protection of Data

The Group places the utmost importance on protecting the
privacy of its customers, partners and staff in the collection,
processing and use of their personal data. The Group
adheres to the applicable data protection regulations and
ensures appropriate technical measures are in place to
protect personal data against unauthorised use or access.
The Group also ensures that customers’ personal data is
securely stored, and processed only for the purpose for
which it has been collected. Relevant staff are provided with
adequate training in compliance with applicable laws on
data privacy protection, to strengthen their awareness and to
protect personal data against loss, unauthorised access, use,
modification or disclosure.
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Protection of Intellectual Property

The Group builds up and protects its intellectual property
rights by prolonged use under the registration of domain
names and various trademarks within the Emperor Group
such as “Emperor” to be used in the relevant jurisdictions.

Anti-corruption/Anti-money Laundering

In order to build up an ethical corporate culture and practices,
the Group has established policies for anti-corruption and
anti-money laundering. To ensure and mitigate the associated
risks, adequate procedures on customer screening and
monitoring, “know your customer” practices, record keeping,
and reporting suspicious circumstances are established in
accordance with the relevant laws, codes and guidelines
issued by the regulatory authorities.

It is essential for the Group's employees to acquire a better
understanding of corruption and related acts. In addressing
and mitigating corruption risks, a set of guidelines was
established to outline acceptable and unacceptable conduct
in employees’ daily business activities. It reaffirms that
every employee adheres to applicable legal requirements
and makes ethical business decisions. Employees are
given briefings organised by the Group or seminars on
anti-corruption organised by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption of Hong Kong. The Group has also
adopted a whistleblowing system and procedures for all
levels and operations under the Group, so staff can raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties such
as misconduct and malpractice in any matter related to the
Group. These policies and procedures can be found in the
employee handbook on the Company’s intranet.

During the Year, no legal case regarding corrupt practices
was brought against the Group or its employees. Also, no
whistleblowing concerning a criminal offence or misconduct
was reported.
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The Group sets out a comprehensive framework of measures
to prevent money laundering activities. At the time of account
opening, the Group will perform a name search in an anti-
money laundering database system provided by a third party
vendor, in order to screen each new client against current
terrorist and sanction designations, and check whether the
client is a Politically Exposed Person (PEP). New account
applications lodged by terrorists or sanctioned entities
would be rejected. Regular name checks of existing clients
against the latest terrorist and sanction list issued by US
Treasury Department, as recommended by the regulators,
are also conducted. The Group performs regular reviews on
transactions by high-risk clients, in order to identify suspicious
transactions. In the event any suspicious transactions are
noted, the Group will report them to the Joint Financial
Intelligence Unit in due course.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by the
Board to review and monitor the policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements which
have significant impact on the Group.

The Legal and Compliance Department is designed to
provide an in-house legal/compliance service that effectively
supports various operation units in their duties and day-to-
day operation to comply with all applicable laws, rules and
regulations (such as Securities and Futures Ordinance and
subsidiary legislations, Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and
Codes and Guidelines issued by Securities and Futures
Commission etc).

Updates on the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time. The Group holds relevant
licences for provision of various services, such as: dealing in
securities and futures contracts; advising on securities and
futures contracts; and advising on corporate finance and
asset management, etc. The management must ensure that
business is conducted in accordance with the applicable laws
and regulations.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Embracing the mission “From the Community, To the
Community”, the Group actively promotes diverse community
campaigns spanning elderly welfare, underprivileged
communities and environmental conservation initiatives. The
Group’s management team also plays an important role in
mobilising staff to join all these activities, which are held in
tandem with its commitment to sustainable development.
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Voluntary Services

i R ke 25

The Group endeavours to support a wide array of voluntary ZANEBEH 3% IEE THE (2L S ME - R
programs in order to promote social harmony. Major volunteering  FE A £ E R EFERFGS 2 1E :

initiatives during the Year included:

Lights Up Homes of Elderly, November 2016

£ Y00 13 52 % B0 > 20164F11H

Staff members formed a volunteer group and paid visits to homes of senior
citizens living alone in Yau Tong, to replace lights with more energy efficient
LED bulbs for free, under a program launched by the Christian Family Service

Centre.

EEBHFERFHOERN —REHT ETHAREIHFEIREBER

E RERMPIEREELEDE L

Elderly Fall Prevention Day, May 2017
RHEPZKL 2 H > 2017451

Community Kitchen: “I Cook, I Like” New Cooking Lesson, April 2017

[ & cookF like | 7 & 2 Z L1857 55 » 201744 H

Volunteers from Emperor Group joined the “Ng Yuk Elderly Community
College Program”, helping the elderly living alone in the district to
learn new things and understand healthy eating habits. The event
was held in Ng Yuk Secondary School in Tai Wai and the students are
responsible for coordinating and monitoring the activity in order to help
them develop habit of giving. Staff volunteers enjoyed the occasion to
prepare the food and have fun spending such special time with the
elderly and students together.
REEBERINMARAEEREREZNAE] EPEANBERES
BHEVMRRBRERREB - ZEHNAKEREH SR 2B,
BREDGELEREE BOMABERNMIZNER - BIF2HA
Hep BRI RM  BAESRENBETK—F e

The Group worked together with HOPE worldwide and provided the fund to
organize an Elderly Fall Prevention Day. Staff volunteers were required to attend
a training session in advance so as to be fall risk assessors using a simple tool
developed by the Chinese University of Hong Kong's Department of Orthopaedics
and Traumatology. Elderly Fall Prevention Day took place at Tai Ji Plaza in Tak
Long Estate. Staff volunteers took up different roles, including registration, blood
pressure measurement, body weight measurement, fall risk assessment and fall
prevention education. HOPE worldwide volunteers would then follow up on those
who have been identified as high risk cases. Follow-up services include facilitating
handrail installation and visits by physio or occupational therapists. Over 100
elderly people were successfully assessed on that day, which could reduce the

chance of elderly falling effectively.
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Amigos Bon Voyage, June 2017

—PE/NE R RAT » 20174F6H

Participants from Sun Chui Lutheran Centre for the Elderly were
picked by volunteers early in the morning. It was a fine day, with mild
sunshine and light breeze, perfect for a day out appreciating the latest
landmarks in East Kowloon, which include Kai Tak Cruise Terminal
and the Runway Park. They also enjoyed the panoramas of Victoria
Harbour and Lei Yue Mun. After a delicious buffet lunch, participants
spent some time in a nearby large-scale shopping mall, feeling the
modern urban vibe.
BEINBRAMERESHRRETOEZNEINRE - FHERG
JEERYE R E X %IEEB*HE% IR BN B R LB
WAR— BB BERARBELNES  XAEHES N EE LREARM
BWEY - ERREFREE R ITERE DM REEISEE  RZH
mRE -

Beijing Changli Trip Volunteering Tour, September 2017

e B R 2k % T17 0 20174F9H

Staff of the Group again took part in the annual outbound
volunteering activity organised by Emperor Foundation.
They joined a four-day tour to Beijing, for service visit to
“Albert Yeung Sau Shing Charity Foundation (Changli)
Elderly Care Centre”, where they set up game booths to
have a whole day of fun with the residents there. They
also witnessed the centre’s official launch at the opening
ceremony held in the midst of the event. A migrant school
at Daxing district in Beijing was another destination of the
tour, where volunteers enjoyed an eco-themed fun fair with
underprivileged children of migrant workers.
AEBETHRZMAZREECBF—EERNAEET
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Charitable Sponsorship and Donations REBD KA

The Group mobilises its staff to participate in charity sale events ZANEBFHEETREXLERENEZCEE  HEt
and fundraising campaigns to help underprivileged people in the [RIZZEE -RAFENRN  TBREEEE RIBIE
community. Major charity sponsorship and donation campaigns E)E 3 :

during the Year included:

Toy Libraries for Elderly with Dementia, October 2016

W2 B TEAE 1R % B B [ 35 i 20164E10H

Leveraging the release of the award winning film Happiness by the Group’s
affiliate company Emperor Motion Pictures, the Group’s charity foundation
Emperor Foundation sponsored the set-up of toy libraries in various elderly
centres operated by Lutheran Church Hong Kong Synod, to address the
issue of dementia. This was followed by a “Dementia Day and Elderly Visit”
campaign at one of the centres, Mr. & Mrs. Lawrence Wong (Second) Home
For The Elderly in Tsueng Kwan O, in October — which enabled staff members
to learn more about the disease, learn how toys reduce the rate of mental
decline, and visit the elderly at the same time. The film’s leading male actor,
Carlos Chan, was invited to join as a special guest.
BASEMBARREETYNEREY (FERR) I AEENESELS
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Dress Causal Day, October 2016

fEHk H > 20164F10H

The staff dressed casual when they took part in the annual
Dress Casual Day organised by the Community Chest on 6
October 2016.

R20165F10H6H  ETHFERSMBB RGBT 2 FREEEMR
=1

Qile Cake Charity Sale, November 2016

BRI RERITEH > 20164E11H

On 5 November 2016, the Group supported the “Qile Cake
Charity Sale”, initiated by the Haven of Hope Christian
Service. The funds raised are used for home-care services
for the elderly.

2016511 ASH A EBE X HEBEHBEEH S REN [E4
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Charity Bazaar, November 2016
BERHE > 20164110

A charity bazaar was hosted by the Group in The Pulse,
the leisure complex in Repulse Bay, to raise fund for Little
Life Warriors Society. A sale proceeds of HK$800,000 was
raised to help improving the welfare of children cancer
patients.
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Oxfam Rice Sale Campaign, May 2017

4Kk ¥ > 2017485 H

Volunteers and their family members participated in
the “Oxfam Rice Sale Campaign” service day. They
encouraged members of the public to donate towards the
“Oxfam Rice Packs” in Fitfort Arcade, North Point, aiming to
raise fund for the China Development Fund, which finances
community-development projects in rural areas of mainland
China.
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AR ES R K] B REDAM RN RER
HENTEHERECSEEEN-

Mooncake Transfer Campaign, September 2017

H BRI B > 2017491

In the “Mooncake Transfer Campaign”, the Group collected
mooncakes from staff. The mooncakes were then donated
to Pok Oi Hospital Wai Yin Association Youth City, for
redistribution to underprivileged families in Tin Shui Wai.
FEITRASHEEES ] h AEERE TIE AL A& A et
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Environmental conservation R

The Group is dedicated to promoting environmental awareness ASBEHNBRBECHESHRREZ -RAFE
through green education. Major environmental conservation W' EZRREEEIE:
initiatives during the Year include:

No Air Con Night, October 2016

VR > 20164:10H

On 7 October 2016, the Group pledged to support “No Air Con Night, Hong Kong 2016”,
launched by Green Sense. The Group encouraged staff to switch off air conditioners
in their offices and homes for 12 hours, demonstrating the Group’s efforts in reducing
greenhouse gases.

20165107 AEB AN X FHRERBEEMRDN [2016FFERSRRE] - AEEREE
THERNERKFPARZEF2N BIR T AEREER D REREBHEENE S -

Woodworking Workshop, October 2016

% [B] —% > 20165104

In the workshop, participants were coached to make their own
stools using used wood and cloth. This served as a precious
lesson to reinforce the concept of recycling among staff, who
gave waste wood a second lease of life.

ZIB I 2 BB N B ER 2 AN A EERE - B TEB
A BEARIZMNE T RIRMBE R ERAM ENE T Edm-

Closer to Nature Hiking Course, February — March 2017
R A — A R R EHVE - 201742 H 23H

A three-day hiking course was organised, for participants
to learn practical hiking skills, including selection of
appropriate gear and safety in the countryside. With
interpretation from the eco-tour guides, the visits enabled
participants to experience nature while promoting eco
conservation awareness. Upon completion of the course
and assessment, the participants received “Certificate
of Mountaineering Level 1" from China Hong Kong
Mountaineering and Climbing Union.
REERPTRI=RAERRE E2HE2BETR
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Earth Hour, March 2017

HhER— /D » 201753 H

On 25 March 2017, the Group joined the millions of people around the
globe and turned off its office lights in support of WWF's Earth Hour, an
annual event to raise awareness of climate change.

201753 A25H  AEBERER ARG —F—EH [HIR— ]\ )&
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Tree Planting Day, June 2017

HiE A > 201746 H

Staff participated in a tree planting day in Peng Chau,
organised by Hong Kong Green Nature Union and the
Committee of International Million Trees (Forest) Project
and Network. Staff enjoyed a pleasant outing, which
enhanced their awareness of environmental protection.
ST 2HETHEBGLE QN EEER G BN ST
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Sai Kung Snorkeling Tour, September 2017

P HFB ZiK > 2017489H

In partnership with Earth Go Gogo, a non-profit
environmental advocacy enterprise, a day trip of rafting
and snorkeling in Sai Kung was arranged. In the morning,
staff and their family members boarded rafts and immersed
themselves in the amazing scenery of the countryside. They
were then headed into the water and enjoyed beautiful
marine life and natural corals near Kiu Tsui beach with their
snorkeling gear. The delightful tour encouraged participants
to support environmental conservation and sustainable
development by bringing them closer nature.
HFEEEFMRERP RGBT AR T Bl 71K
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Awards and Internship Programme

SR N S

The Group acknowledges employees’ contributions to the
community. “Community Services Staff Award” was launched to
recognise individuals who had devoted the most volunteer hours
during 2016. The awardees were rewarded with an extra paid day.

The summer internship programme was organised for the sixth
time in a row, providing university students with real workplace
experiences in the financial field. The programme includes
rotations into different business units, helping students to establish
a solid foundation by developing a broad range of knowledge and
skills. As part of the programme, well-known guests from different
business sectors were invited to share their experiences in the
industry as well as advices of their personal financial management.

The Group has been awarded with the 5 Years Plus Caring
Company Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for
four consecutive years, recognizing its ongoing commitment to
fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

HERRBAITEN B Z 8

Daisy Yeung

B i

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
MANAGING DIRECTOR

AT AR R S A A

“Dedicated to our continuous efforts on strengthening the
shareholder’s portfolio, coupled with the proven track record
in these few years, I am glad to see that the stock of Emperor
Capital Group Limited has become one of the constituent
stocks of MSCI HK Small Cap Index since 1 December
2015.”

Daisy Yeung, aged 52, joined the Group in January 1996. She
is the Managing Director of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. Ms. Yeung is the Chairperson of the Executive
Committee as well as a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee of the Company. She is also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company and a responsible
officer of Emperor Securities Limited, Emperor Futures Limited,
Emperor Wealth Management Limited and Emperor Asset
Management Limited under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”"). Moreover, she is now the Chairman of The Institute of
Securities Dealers Limited and a General Committee member
of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. Ms. Yeung is
responsible for the formulation of corporate strategy, overseeing
operations and the overall steering of the Company’s management
focusing in the areas of marketing and business development.
She has accumulated over 21 years of management experience in
financial industry and has been active in driving the development
of the local securities industry. Ms. Yeung holds a Bachelor’s
Degree of Science in Business Administration.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Chan Shek Wah

Bt &5 3

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
PfiES

Chei Suk Hing, Louisa
IR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
COMPANY SECRETARY
AR A A E

Pearl Chan
B il 1

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
I

Chan Shek Wah, aged 54, joined the Board in
December 2011. He is the Executive Director of
the Company and a member of the Executive
Committee as well as a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also the
Managing Director and responsible officer
of Emperor Capital Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company, under the SFO. He has over
30 years of professional experiences in the
financial industry. He has been engaged in the
sales, proprietary trading, structuring of equity
derivatives and equity capital market products
as well as the provision of corporate finance
advisory services to listed issuers. Before joining
the Group, he was the senior management and
an executive director in several international
financial institutions.

Choi Suk Hing, Louisa, aged 53, joined the
Board in March 2008. She is an Executive
Director and the Company Secretary of the
Company. Ms. Choi is the Chairperson of
the Corporate Governance Committee and
a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company. She is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company and a responsible
officer of Emperor Capital Limited under the SFO.
Ms. Choi has over 19 years of experience in
the finance industry covering securities, futures
and corporate finance. Before that, she had
worked in the company secretary profession in
both listed companies as well as professional
firms for over 8 years. Ms. Choi holds a Master’s
Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie
University, Australia. She is a fellow member of
both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Pearl Chan, aged 44, joined the Board in
June 2011. She is an Executive Director and
a member of the Executive Committee of the
Company. She is also a director and responsible
officer of Emperor Capital Limited under the
SFO. She has been working in the corporate
finance field for more than 16 years. She was a
practising lawyer in Hong Kong before joining
the Group. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor's Degree
in Laws from The University of Hong Kong and a
Master's Degree in Management from Macquarie
University, Australia.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

HERRBAITEN B Z 8

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Chu Kar Wing, aged 60, joined the Board in May 2010. He is the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well as a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Chu is also an independent non-executive director
of another Hong Kong listed company, China Power Clean Energy
Development Company Limited (formerly known as China Power
New Energy Development Company Limited)(Stock Code: 735).
He has extensive experience in the banking and finance sector
for several well-known corporations. Moreover, he is now the
President of Canada-China Culture and Education Association.
Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor’s Degree of Social Sciences majoring in
Economics.

Poon Yan Wai, aged 47, joined the Board in January 2014. He
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. He is now the financial controller,
company secretary and an authorised representative of a Hong
Kong listed company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of another Hong Kong listed company, Prosten Health
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8026). He has over 20 years of
experience in the auditing and accounting field. Mr. Poon holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Accountancy and a Master's Degree in
Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Wan Choi Ha, aged 50, joined the Board in July 2015. She
is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Ms. Wan has been admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong since 1993 and is now a Partner of Wan
and Leung, Solicitors. She was previously an independent non-
executive director of another Hong Kong listed company, Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (Stock Code: 296) and retired on 18
August 2015. Ms. Wan graduated from The University of Hong
Kong with a Bachelor’'s Degree in Laws.
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are engaged in the provision of financial
services including (i) commercial and personal lending as well as
margin and IPO financing; (ii) brokerage, wealth management and
asset management; (iii) placing and underwriting services for listed
issuers; and (iv) corporate finance advisory services.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 73.

An interim dividend of HK1.38 cents per share for the Year (2016:
HK1.20 cents per share) amounting to approximately HK$93.02
million (2016: HK$68.98 million), was paid to the Shareholders
during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.52 cents per share (2016: HK1.28 cents per share) for the
Year, amounting to approximately HK$102.5 million (2016: HK$86.3
million) to those Shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 7 February 2018, subject to the
approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 30 January 2018 (Tuesday) (2018 AGM"):

BUSINESS REVIEW AND
PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set out
in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5 to
11. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages
60 to 62 and note 36 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

There is no important event affecting the Company that had
occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of this report.

In addition, discussion on the key relationships with the
Group’s major stakeholders, Group’s environmental policy and
performance as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
13, 14 and 22 of this annual report.
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 76.

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 30 September 2017 represented the aggregate of
contributed surplus (stated as “special reserve” in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statement) and retained profits amounting to
approximately HK$101.9 million and HK$86.4 million respectively
(2016: HK$101.9 million and HK130.4 million).

The special reserve of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares of the
subsidiaries of the Company in issue and the nominal value of
the shares issued by the Company for acquisition of a subsidiary
pursuant to the group reorganisation on 2 April 2007.

Under the Companies Act in 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution
to Shareholders. However, a company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 160 of the annual
report.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property and equipment at a
cost of approximately HK$3,006,000.

Details of changes in the property and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DEBENTURE

Details of the debentures of the Company in the form of unsecured
bonds are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the subscription agreement dated 1 December 2016
and the share option schemes as disclosed in notes 28 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to
the Group’s five largest customers accounted for 29% (2016: 32%)
of the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted for
9% (2016: 13%) of the Group’s total turnover.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of principal
activities of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Daisy Yeung (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Shek Wah

Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa

Ms. Pearl Chan

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Kar Wing
Mr. Poon Yan Wai
Ms. Wan Choi Ha

Biographical details of the Directors and senior executives as
at the date of this report are set out from pages 30 to 32 of this
annual report. Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note
9 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Pearl Chan, Mr. Poon Yan Wai and Ms. Wan Choi Ha
shall retire by rotation at the 2018 AGM and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2018 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company has
in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are provided for
in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential liability
and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be brought
against the Directors and the directors of the Group respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT # 3 & i

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

HREAEHITBABZ@E R IR

As at 30 September 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

R20175F9H30H AR R EERFZRHTRABRA AR REBBER (E& R (EBHLUEGERD) BEXVER) 2 - 185
iy hEEETHREEECNARAIRE (BFMEED) E3026AREE Eﬂﬁiﬁ?ﬂ’éﬁxﬁﬁ g7 LR ([ LR

A1) EMBETABEFETERRGZFRETUASITMERA R LB I m ORB T
Long position interests in the Company
AR 2 W) 2 5 AT A
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)
AR EREE0.01ETEBER ([KF])
Number of
Issued Shares
held Approximate%
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests BEEERT holding
EspR g1 EEMEE i qvigea =] BHFR%
Ms. Daisy Yeung Eligible beneficiary of the AY Trust 2,784,325,360 41.31%
B LI AY Trustz B B Z & A (Note)
(Hiat)
Ms. Daisy Yeung Beneficial owner 18,000,000 0.26%
B FL L EnEAA
Mr. Chan Shek Wah Beneficial owner 20,457,000 0.30%
BRE#HIE R4 EREAA
Ms. Louisa Choi Beneficial owner 4,680,000 0.07%
ORI 2+ EmlEE A
Ms. Pearl Chan Beneficial owner 2,925,000 0.04%
BR AL H7 22 + EmlEE A
Note:
Hiat

These Shares were held by Emperor Capital Group Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY

Holdings”). AY Holdings was held by STC International Limited (“STC International”) in trust for The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY

Trust”), a discretionary trust under which Ms. Daisy Yeung is one of the eligible beneficiaries.

HERDTAGIKEXETERAERAR (BXKUEXER)Z2EMBRARREESFSEERERARFEE - BXKEXZERBThe
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2017, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (‘2007 Share
Option Scheme”) on 20 September 2007 (then amended on
13 August 2013) to provide incentive or rewards to participants
including the Directors and eligible employees of the Group. The
2007 Share Option Scheme lapsed automatically upon its expiry
on 19 September 2017. On 27 January 2017, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (“2017 Share Option
Scheme”) in order to continuously provide incentive or rewards
to participants. Particulars of the 2007 Share Option Scheme
and 2017 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the Year, no option was granted, exercised or cancelled
under the 2007 Share Option Scheme and 2017 Share Option
Scheme.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the share options as stated above, at the end of the
Year and at no time during the Year was the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives
of the Company or their spouse or children under 18 years of age
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 30 September 2017, none of the Directors nor their
respective close associates was interested in any business which
is considered to compete or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT # 3 & #Hih

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SECURITIES
HA N LR 2 B IR
As at 30 September 2017, so far as is known to any Directors or chief executives of the Company, the persons or

corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO (“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:

MR20179F9 B30 AN RIZE SR

I

= T

BABMA ATATHAT (BARREFHHZSTRABIN KRR LA

Mty R AR R EEREA R (BH AT KRD) FB6EAEBEFRELM ([ERREZLM ) SBTHEARQA

ZRERIORE
Long position in the Shares
Iy Z 55 E
Number of
Shares interested
in or deemed Approximate %
to be interested holding
Name Capacity/Nature of interest BEREAES AR
wE,/ AR 5%/ EutE EEzBROHBE BI
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 2,784,325,360 41.31%
15 X B EE 1R REEHEE 2 e (Note)
(Htet)
STC International Trustee of the AY Trust 2,784,325,360 41.31%
AY TrustZ Z5EA (Note)
(Htet)
Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of the AY Trust 2,784,325,360 41.31%
BEKIEL AY Trustz BI3Z A (Note)
(Htet)
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 2,784,325,360 41.31%
(ZN-Fegun [ (Note)
(Htet)
China Huarong International Interest in a controlled corporation 609,914,000 9.05%
Holdings Limited REVESEE 2 s
P EER B R IER AR A A
Huarong Real Estate Co. Ltd. Interest in a controlled corporation 609,914,000 9.05%

EREXBREMELT]

RREER 2 s
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Number of
Shares interested
in or deemed Approximate %

to be interested holding
Name Capacity/Nature of interest BESRAES MR
mE/ B8 513/ EmuE BREzROEE BAL
China Huarong Asset Interest in a controlled corporation 609,914,000 9.05%
Management Co., Ltd. REESEE 2 s
PR EEEERD
BERAF]
Taiping Assets Management Investment Manager 612,900,000 9.09%
(HK) Company Limited KEEEA
AFEEER (FE)
BRAF]
Taiping Trustees Limited Trustee 612,900,000 9.09%
KN EFBRAT HFEA
Note:
Hiat

These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest by virtue of being an eligible beneficiary of the AY
Trust as set out under the Section of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities” above.
ERNREXEERESTHRABZESF B AR | —HHAHBRFLTIERAY TustE BR X AT HERBEAER 2 HERA

B o

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 30 September 2017, no short positions were recorded in the DI
Register.
ARSI BT R - R2017F9A30H MR B TR S R M AL AR -

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2017, the Directors were not aware of any person or corporation (other
than the Director and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any interests or
short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in DI Register or otherwise notified to the Company.
Br_ESCHEEEE SN PA20174F9A30  ER W A ABEAALTSEE (RA R RESTHESTTHA BIN RERIRD 407
BRDFPHEEIRBREFREB TN R RBRELMRSTHAG AR R Z TR IRE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR

CONTRACTS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

HRRARZ 5~ KPG8 S d S BB 5 2 B it

Continuing Connected Transactions

F 4 B A2 B

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the

Company:

RAFER - AKEEH

1. Tenancy Agreements

GiNRE

Name of counterparty
HEKE/ 28

Very Sound
Investments Limited

(note 1) (Hfzt1)

Headwise Investment
Limited (note 1)

BHREER AT
(Hrzt1)

Active Pace
Investment Limited

(note 1) (H1zt1)

Nature of transaction
RaMtE

Operating lease rentals paid
(effective monthly rental:
HK$299,444.44)

IREEHERS (BR
AT 299,444.44% 1)

Operating lease rentals paid
(effective monthly rental:
HK$321,191.76)

TREeRERs (BER
AT :321,191.76% 1)

Operating lease rentals paid
(effective monthly rental:
HK$95,500)

xfigenEne (BR
AR 95500% L)

Operating lease rentals paid
(effective monthly rental:
HK$46,810)

xfigeRgns (BR
AT 46810%7T)

Date of Agreement
1% B 5

Term

HH

31/03/2014

01/04/2014 - 31/03/2017

30/03/2017

01/04/2017 - 31/03/2020

31/03/2016

01/04/2016 - 31/03/2018

31/03/2016

01/04/2016 - 31/03/2018

ARRZBEAL (EER EMRADETTIIIRS:

Location of premises

NELH

24th Floor, Emperor Group Centre,
288 Hennessy Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BT

§fE5F8288%
REXERL24E

24th Floor, Emperor Group Centre,
288 Hennessy Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BEEF

¥ [E 55182885k

HEKED LU

Units 603 & 604, 6/F,
Emperor Group Centre,
288 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BEEF

& fE 5182885
HEEEHAL
61£603% 604%E

Unit 606, 6th Floor,
Emperor Group Centre,
288 Hennessy Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
BREF

/e 182685
REEEHL
612606%

Amount for
the Year

FEEZER
HK$000
FET

1,797

1,927

1,146

562

Emperor Capital Group Limited &5 724 A FRA 7
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2. Financial Services Agreement with AY Holdings for Emperor Group
R 5 4 [ B A 2 A S R I T O < i i e 5 T ik

Name of counterparty Nature of transaction

HERE/ 28 XHHE

AY Holdings (note 2a) (a) Commission, brokerage fees and interest

B K EEER income from the listed members under AY
(Hiit2a) Holdings, its subsidiaries and associates

(“Emperor Group”)
IE%&‘EX?%T Hxﬁ‘ﬂtmﬁé AR
MEARRBMEAL ([EE2E )Zf
e )Sﬁ 'J BIA

(b) Maximum margin loan amount to the listed
members of the Emperor Group
RTHREEEET FTKERRIZ K
EXeH

BIfR

(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to the listed
members of the Emperor Group
LTHREKEET LARERAIREERA
RRRENEE

(d) Maximum term loan amount to the listed
members of the Emperor Group
RTHEEEET FAKEAH

RE8

BEEHE

(e) Financial advisory fee from the listed
members of the Emperor Group

KEREKEET LMREARERENE

Emperor Capital Group Limited &5 38724 A R A 7
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017 4F-#

(i)

Date of Agreement

tfh & A 4

(i) Term

i
(i)

it
10/09/2015

01/10/2015 to 30/09/2018

(on normal commercial terms and at rates no

more favourable than those available to other

independent third parties

BRAZEIRETERRETEME Y
E=RZEE)

Amount for
the Year
REEZEE
HK$000
FET

57

417

1,580
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Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung for the Yeung Family
B K 5 B0 e Lo LT S8 2 4 il IR S 10k ek

Amount for
() Date of Agreement the year
e =R AEEZEH
Name of counterparty Nature of transaction (i) Term HK$ 000
HERE/ 28 XHME Lk FET
Ms. Daisy Yeung (@) Commission, brokerage, fees and interest (i)  10/09/2015 3,748
(note 2b) income from Ms. Daisy Yeung and her
BHREZL associate, but excluding the listed members (i) 01/10/2015 to 30/09/2018
(Hitob) of the Emperor Group (“Yeung Family”) (on normal commercial terms and at rates no
REGRFLTREBEAL BTEER more favourable than those available to other
SEEETEMRERR ([BRRE]) 2 independent third parties
e BLE BRARFEKA B-RAZGIRRTERNRR T EMBY
E=RZER)
(b) Maximum margin loan amount to the Yeung 48,881
Family
RTHERRR ERTRENGE
(c) Maximum IPO loan amount to the Yeung 5,682
Family
RTBRRGEEREAAFAEREREHE
(d) Maximum term loan amount to the Yeung -
Family
BTHERER L EREHENEE
(e) Financial advisory fee from the Yeung 3,125
Family
REBRE G ERANE
()  Commission and fee payment to the Yeung 460
Family for their services being provided to
the Group
MERRGEXNEAREERERE A
RER
Emperor Capital Group Limited &5 #8724 A R A 7 43
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Notes:

1.

Tenancy Agreements

The premises under the Tenancy Agreements have been rented to the
Group for its business operation. The counterparties of the Tenancy
Agreements are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of Emperor
International Holdings Limited which are indirectly controlled by the
AY Trust. Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed interest in the transactions by
virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

(a)

(b)

Financial Services Agreement with AY Holdings for Emperor
Group

Under this agreement, the Group has agreed to provide to other
listed members under Emperor Group (i) brokerage services for
securities, futures and options trading; (ii) wealth management
and asset management services; (iii) placing and underwriting
services; (iv) financing services including margin loans, IPO
loans and terms loans; and (v) financial advisory services. The
counterparty of this agreement is controlled by the AY Trust. Ms.
Daisy Yeung has deemed interest in this agreement by virtue of
being one of the eligible beneficiaries of the AY Trust.

Financial Services Agreement with Ms. Daisy Yeung for the
Yeung Family

Under this agreement, the Group has agreed to provide to
the members of the Yeung Family (i) brokerage services for
securities, futures and options trading; (ii) wealth management
and asset management services; (iii) financing services including
margin loans, IPO loans and term loans; and (iv) financial
advisory services. The Group has also agreed to pay commission
and fee to the Yeung Family, including (i) the commission and
fee for their acting as placees or underwriters for the securities
of the Company or for the securities underwritten or placed by
the Group; and (ii) referral fee for introducing clients to the Group
relating to the Group’s business. Ms. Daisy Yeung has deemed
interest in this agreement by virtue of being one of the members
of the Yeung Family.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Regarding the related party transaction as set out in note 31
to the consolidated financial statements, all transactions as
shown in items (i), (iii), (iv), (v) and (vi) are continuing connected
transactions and that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Auditor’s Letter on Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Emperor Capital Group Limited &5 38724 A R A 7
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1. HEHS
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The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group (“Disclosed CCTs") on pages
41 to 44 of this Annual Report in accordance with Main Board Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s Letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive directors of the Company (“INED(s)”) have reviewed the
Disclosed CCTs and the Auditor's Letter and have confirmed that
these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance which was significant in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of the INEDs are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration of the Executive Directors are decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link
of business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current best practice), the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics. The
INEDs are paid fees in line with market practice. No individual
should determine his or her own remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT # 3 & #Hih

RIS R T35 B S 14A 5615 - 2B 2 st AN E R
FNBMEMBALBBEENFTERERS ([
BEHERERS ) BHERBER UHAEE
IRANEERAY R o AN B B #5 A% E1AT iR 1 2l AR B
FEEZ P o

5 e AT R

BiE FAR RIS 14A 555 NA BB IFMITE S
(B IERTEE) CEMERERERESS
NS WHERZEL S HEAEE :

() MAKEZRAEERBKPIIL:

(i) mR—ARIEERBRME) B X GHERE
TR

(i) ARBEBRHRE
REVEEBE I -

T RRATAE AHAR

B EXFTRERE SN - IAANF R R e AN E A (] ]
I AR Zliﬂﬁjﬁiﬁfﬂﬂ@ﬁﬁ’&ﬁ B AR

RIRMBARSETUMNHAEEXBEMEBE
Kﬁﬁé%b"\*qﬂ A B A M (R E RS

ZIEMEAR S ZHHEH -

ﬁj#ﬁﬁ%$2ﬁjﬁﬁ%

=

RARIEWE ‘JtLL%_LﬁF#ﬂ %%*ETFiﬁ%EE'J
%3131'7@*“&2@75 uL,\El Z’S uu% F'ﬁ
BEMIFRITESH /B AL

Bt T 3R

HITEEZHMhFMEE 2R - ESHHH
BOR (AHEREF R ETME U NARERLZ
RERBTRETR) AKEZ2EXE @5
AERB LM SR AL BRETFREEBER I
MEESET - BUIFNTEFTZMESINTA™
GBI 2 EEM ST - WEER A LA BITEEHR
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Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual's responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to
financial performance of the Group and individual performance,
and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical and life
insurances. To provide incentive to the eligible participants
(including Directors and employees), the remuneration package
has been extended to include share options. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 47 to 65.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, there was sufficient
public float of at least 25% of the Company issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$263,000.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2018 AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Daisy Yeung
Managing Director

Hong Kong
7 December 2017
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The Directors of the Company have adopted various policies
to ensure compliance with the code provisions of Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. For the Year, the Company had complied fully with
the code provisions of the CG Code except with the deviation from
code provision A.2.1 which requires the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer be separate and not be performed by the
same individual.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at 30 September 2017, the Board comprised seven Directors
(four Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INEDs”)) who possess the skills, experience
and expertise either in the same industry or relevant to the
management of the business of the Group. The biographies of the
Directors are set out from pages 30 to 32 of this report under the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Executives” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Ms. Daisy Yeung, also being the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group, has been appointed by the Board
as the Managing Director of the Company who is responsible for
leading the Board and the overall management of the business of
the Group. She would ensure that all Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and that adequate, complete
and reliable information is received by the Directors. On the other
hand, the three INEDs provide independent and impartial opinion
on issues to be considered by the Board. The Board is of the
opinion that the current Board structure functions effectively and
does not intend to make any change thereof.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well recognized experience
and expertise in financial, legal or accounting fields who contribute
impartial view and make independent judgement on issues to be
discussed at the Board meetings. They are appointed for an initial
term of three years which is renewed automatically for successive
terms of one year subject to early termination with written notice
being served by either party. The terms of the INEDs are also
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election provisions under
the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. The Board considered each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly identified as such
in all corporate communications of the Company that disclose the
names of Directors.

RRARZEZCHRRZABR UERET LD
BRI ST el 2 R EVARSTRI ([REREIEST
A1) 25 RNES  RARIERAFEARAZmE T
KEVASTRIZ ST RIS MR REST RIRSIEE A 2115
(AT L E RATIRABS 2 BT B F B TS/
Al — AL HEE)BRSN -

EHE
i o @ 4R

MR2017F9H30H ' EF R ESE (MAFHITE
ENZBIERITES ([BYIEMITES]) )4A
K REEEEMRARITENEASEE  £HKEES
AR CBREER - EEVERSNARES
NEEEREZ [EERERAITBRABZER] —
e

B AT B

ST RMERSCERA 2 MR TE £ 78 R ATIARE, 2 BT 78
2 FHBENGHER— ALHEE - AKRBETRAEZER
HRIMEREFSREIRANAETALE &
BEREEFERARERB 2 mEE - (R
RABEERREFTE R LIRMZ FRERE
[E¥R N BRI RS TR KRR SE 2 BRIt
S BN GFITEREREFEE B F AR
HELMALEER BEFER R EFERK 2R
BINRE R ARUENE - B N BHEL E & H)

WorJE TS

BYIFMTESHAER XEXGE AR AL
BEERZEXEAL REREZTEEH LW
EERMP B R LB HIE - RE 2 THE
HR=%F HRZFEPHER WErIREMN—7 %
HEMBAER KL B IFMITERIAREAR
NEZ ERARRERENATEEE(E-

ARREWB| BB IFNITES 2 B EMHER
E-BEEQHA2E LMRAEIABMGMAE 2 FERER
RRREDRBIAL ARREMBREESY
FZATEAT  CARIIRBFITER 2 &

1/'\ °
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Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for the
leadership, control and promotion of success of the Group in the
interest of the Shareholders by directing and supervising its affairs
and by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the financial
and management performance of the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has delegated powers and authorities to carry out the
day-to-day management and operation of the Group, formulate
business policies and make decision on key business issues. The
Executive Committee shall have all powers and authorities of the
Board except the following matters as set out in a formal schedule
of matters specifically reserved by the Board:

—  Publication of final and interim results of the Company
—  Dividend distribution or other distributions

— Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and
remuneration policy

— Changes to major group structure or Board composition
requiring notification by announcement

—  Publication of the announcement for notifiable transaction and
non-exempted connected transaction/continuing connected
transaction

— Non-exempted connected transaction/continuing connected
transaction

—  Notifiable transaction requiring Shareholders’ approval

— Capital restructuring and issue of new securities of the
Company

—  Financial assistance to Directors

Emperor Capital Group Limited &2 8724 B A R A 7
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Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty
of disclosure of interest and business of the Group and such
induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All Directors
have been updated on the latest developments regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices. There is a procedure agreed by
the Board to ensure Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the Company’s expenses in order to assist them to perform their
duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. During the
Year, each Director had participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/workshops or by reading
materials on the following topics to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and has provided a record of training to the
Company.

Name of Directors EEnA
Daisy Yeung S
Chan Shek Wah PeR £5 2
Choi Suk Hing, Louisa ZORI
Pearl Chan e {iml, Hfy
Chu Kar Wing PN
Poon Yan Wai EICE
Wan Choi Ha B

Relationship Between the Board Members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relations)
among each other.

Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

ERZME TR AEERR

FrEEEE R EEETES  RERET
BRANRESZ A RRG)  BEEEZETR
REEEB ZAEREESIER MRFTTESERT
AEEE TERNEHRRAEREZSHIBNE
e 2EERNMEHM EMRAREAEAREE B
ZERIEEESSEFER (EmEREN - B
MEEHRITCEEATHRZES ETC0ET
B FESAEEERN MEABERESIE
VEEERUBBESARNATRITHRE BFAH
AT EYE -

EEHR RECETEEERTAANBHESE
Az TRNGRX AL SR - RAFE  SEEFHES
HEFEEXNER BALFARA N TR ERE
/TS BB AR EEHRE 2 MB K
Keg - WE AR TS

Topics on training covered for all Directors
FBEESMREZEIEE

corporate governance ¥ &A

finance B4

industry specific 17218

regulatory 38 &
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a
b
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BRI
Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment G i R R A A G E S N

The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is set ANFEEEHFES:H 2B REHHWT
out below:

No. of Meetings attended/held
LREEE BIERRY

Corporate
Governance
Audit Remuneration Nomination Committee  Executive General
Name of Directors Board Committee ~ Committee = Committee {£¥%%R  Committee Meeting
ESpE EEXe ENZET® HMWzEe REZ8e £E® YTZEE® RRAE®
Executive Directors
HITES
Daisy Yeung (Notes 1 & 2) 9/9 313 il 111 N/A 9/9 11
B (Wit1k2) TER
Chan Shek Wah 99 N/A N/A N/A N/A 99 i
BRinE TEA N H TEA NER
Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Notes 1 & 3) 99 33 N/A N/A 11 9/9 1
SR (Hrt1R3) TEm TEA
Pearl Chan 99 N/A N/A N/A N/A 99 11
Bk TEA i F TEA NER
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHTES
Chu Kar Wing (Note 4) 9/9 313 il 111 N/A N/A 11
KRER (Hit4) NEm TEA
Poon Yan Wai (Note 5) 9/9 313 il N/A il N/A 11
BLCE (Hrits) EA i
Wan Choi Ha (Note 6) 99 33 N/A i 11 N/A il
mYE (Hiit6) TEm TEA
Total number of meetings held: 9 3 1 1 1 9 1
BUER B
Notes: B at -
1. Ms. Daisy Yeung and Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa were invited to sit-in 1. 15 iF &+ RESRE 2 +1E A IERK B E B [E F &
the Audit Committee meetings as non-members FEEEER

2. Chairperson of the Executive Committee 2. WTZEEXR
3. Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee 3. EEBERZE®ER
4. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 4. FMEEEERE
5. Chairman of the Audit Committee 5. BRZEEgXRE
6.  Chairperson of the Nomination Committee 6. IREBEZEBEXRE

Upon reviewing (a) the annual confirmation of the time commitment  #& %7 (a)& E B H KL AR Fﬁ%éﬁZErﬁEnu'
given by each Director; (b) the directorships and major (O)SEZZEZHELREZE0: RCO)ZTESNE
commitments of each Director; and (c) the attendance rate of & anﬁﬁﬂiiiﬁéééﬂﬁﬂxiﬁﬁ\
each Director on full Board and the respective board committee 2 HEXR% BEZSEH RAFEERN 28BES
meetings as well as general meeting, the Board is satisfied #HE[HEHEEETERSE -

that all Directors have spent sufficient time in performing their

responsibilities during the Year.
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Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the meeting in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent to the
Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board meeting.
For all other board meetings, reasonable notice was given. Board
papers and related materials which provide appropriate, complete
and reliable information are generally sent to all Directors and
relevant committee members at least 3 days before each Board
meeting and Board Committee meeting to enable the Directors to
make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in sufficient
details the matters considered and decisions reached, with
draft and final versions being circulated to the Directors for their
comment and records respectively, within reasonable time after
the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being kept by
the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting on
the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her
associates has a material interest and that he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at such Board meeting.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate effective
management, certain functions of the Board have been delegated
by the Board to the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and
Executive Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are INEDs.
Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are
given to the respective members of these Committees. Details of
the Board Committees are set out below:
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Audit Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Poon Yan Wai (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Chu Kar Wing
and Ms. Wan Choi Ha.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit Committee
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for (a)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and obijectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of
external auditor; (d) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee held three
meetings during the Year.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance-in-charge and/
or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit process
and the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of the annual
consolidated financial statements for the financial year
ended 30 September 2016 (“Previous Year”) as well as
the interim consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 31 March 2017;

i. reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-
charge the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group during the Previous Year;

ii. annual review of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the Previous Year;

iv. approved the audit plan for the financial year ended 30
September 2017, reviewed the independence of external
auditor and approved the engagement of external
auditor; and

v. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2018 annual general meeting
(“AGM").
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Remuneration Committee (set up on 1 March 2007)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Chairman of the Committee) and
Mr. Poon Yan Wai, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy Yeung,
being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Remuneration Committee is primarily
responsible for making recommendation to the Board on
(a) Company’s policy and structure of the remuneration of
Directors and senior management; (b) the remuneration
of INEDs; and (c) the specific remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.
Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for
the Year are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed and recommended to the Board on approval of
the Directors’ fees; and

i. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management
and recommended the Board to approve their specific
packages.
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Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Wan Choi Ha (Chairperson of the Committee) and
Mr. Chu Kar Wing, both being INEDs, and Ms. Daisy Yeung,
being the Managing Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, size and diversity
of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity Policy; (c)
determining the policy for the nomination of Directors and
identifying potential candidates for directorship; (d) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment, re-election or re-designation of Directors
and succession planning for Directors; (e) assessing
the independence of INEDs; and (f) reviewing the time
commitment of each Director. The Nomination Committee held
one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i.  reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;
i. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

ii. reviewed the time commitment of the Directors in
performing their duties as directors; and

iv. recommended to the Board on nomination of Directors
for re-election at the 2017 annual general meeting.

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will also assess the merits and contribution of any
Director proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated
to be appointed as Director will bring to the Board against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board that would complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.
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Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five
members, namely Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa (Chairperson of
the Committee) being an Executive Director, Mr. Poon Yan Wai
and Ms. Wan Choi Ha, both being INEDs, a representative
from company secretarial function and a representative
from finance and accounts function. The specific written
terms of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee
is available on the Company’'s website. The primary duties
of the Corporate Governance Committee are (a) reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of
the Company and making recommendations to the Board;
(b) reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices
of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements of the Company; (c) developing, reviewing and
monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to Directors and relevant employees of the Group
on dealings with the Company’s securities; (d) reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and (e)
reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Report. The Corporate Governance
Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board;

i. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

ii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.
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5. Executive Committee (set up on 18 November 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of four members, namely
Ms. Daisy Yeung (Chairperson of the Committee), Mr. Chan
Shek Wah, Ms. Choi Suk Hing, Louisa and Ms. Pearl Chan,
all being the Executive Directors. The primary duties of the
Executive Committee are (a) formulating business policies
and making decision on matters relating to the management
and operations of the Group; and (b) having all power and
authorities of the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule
on matters reserved for and delegated by the Board” adopted
by the Board from time to time.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiries with all Directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in such
Model Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
the consolidated financial statements of the Group and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of the
financial and other Board decisions. The Directors believe that
they have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable and ensured the consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a “going concern” basis. The auditor of the Company
has made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report.

The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal financial statements so as to give
the Directors a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS
A. Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to ensure
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

B. Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems (“Systems”)

(1) Control structure
The Board

ensure the maintenance of appropriate and effective
Systems in order to safeguard the Shareholders’
investment and assets of the Group;

define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

determine the nature and extent of significant risk
that the Company is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives and formulate the Group’s risk
management strategies.

Audit Committee

oversee the Systems of the Group;

review and discuss with the management annually
to ensure that the management has performed its
duty to have effective Systems; and

consider major findings on internal control matters
and make recommendations to the Board.
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The management (including heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

e design, implement and monitor the Systems
properly and ensure the Systems are executed
effectively;

e monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in
day-to-day operations;

e give prompt responses to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or
external auditors; and

e provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.

Internal Audit Department

e  carry out the analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems.

Control approach and tools

During the Year, the management analysed the control
environment, identified risks pertaining thereto, and
implemented various controls therein.

Approach taken: The management conducted
interviews with relevant staff members, reviewing
relevant documentation of the internal control
system and evaluating findings of any deficiencies
in the design of the Group's internal control system,
providing recommendations for improvement and
assessing the effectiveness of implementation
of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the risk
management and internal control are reported to
and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

i. Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
They are in place to safeguard the assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and/or external
publication.
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i. Management information system and
technology: Such use to control over the business
activities allows close tracking of various inputs and
outputs of the Group’s business such as customer
information system and human resources. It also
tracks audit trails in the authorisation system, in
which permissions and responsibility of authorisation
are clearly identified and adequate records can be
maintained in the system.

iv. Reports and variance analysis: Such reports
and analysis of each segment are conducted on a
regular basis such that their performance can be
easily accessible.

v. Information flow: The transparent information flow
alerts us promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking
with historical database and comparisons with the
same also act as a detecting device for spotting
unusual activities.

The Board acknowledged that the management had
been progressively implementing an adequate internal
control system to ensure the effective functioning of the
Group's operational, financial and compliance areas.

C. Risk Management

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and
review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyse,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority. It endeavours to evaluate and
compare the level of risk against predetermined acceptable
levels of risk. For risk control and monitoring, it involves
making decisions regarding which risks are acceptable
and how to address those that are not. The management
will develop contingency plans for possible loss scenarios.
Accidents and other situations involving loss or near-loss will
be investigated and properly documented as part of the effort
to manage risks.
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Significant Risks and Strategies

The Group's business, financial conditions and results may be
affected by risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s
business. Certain significant risks have been identified
through the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group and their respective key
strategies/control measures are set out below:

(1) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the borrower or
counterparty may fail to perform its obligation to pay
in a timely manner, or that its ability to perform such
obligation may get impaired before delivery date.

The Group's Credit Committee, the ultimate credit
decision-making organ of the Group, is responsible
for putting in place credit policies and procedures for
approving lending including those for approving credit
and trading limits for customers and approving individual
stocks acceptable for margin lending at specified ratios.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk lies mainly in two
areas:

a) Margin financing

The customers’ trading of securities or futures
may expose the Group to risk arising from price
volatility which may reduce the customers’ ability
to meet their obligations. The Credit Committee
will prescribe from time to time the lending limits
on individual stock or on any individual customers
and their respective associates by considering their
creditworthiness, financial strength and the size of
their positions or commitments.

The Credit and Risk Control Department (“CRC
Department”) is responsible for the daily monitoring
of the changes in customers’ positions, their
accounts and financing ratios; to observe strictly
the approved financing and credit policies; to make
margin calls and perform forced liquidation, where
appropriate; to report to the management regularly
and when abnormalities arise; to closely monitor
the unusual movements and trading halts of stocks
and timely identify non-performing debts; and to
demand higher margin requirements and step up
risk control for particular customers or products,
where appropriate.

The Group has set up policies on customer
concentration risk and stock concentration risk.
The CRC Department will monitor the concentration
of credit risk and regularly perform stress tests to
assess the Group’s credit risk exposure and capital
adequacy and to report anomaly or any unusual
price movements of customers’ stock positions.
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b) Lending portfolio

The Credit Committee sets and establishes the
credit underwriting, approving, provisioning policies.
All loans and advances are subject to credit
analysis, borrower’s due diligence, risk assessment
and are approved by the management according
to the credit policies set by the Credit Committee.
The Loans Operation Department is tasked with
the daily monitoring of exposures for loans and
advances, while accounts with deteriorating credit
position may be referred to the CRC Department
for closely monitoring. The Credit Committee meets
both regularly and timely to review the developments
and status of past due accounts and to ensure
appropriate actions are taken in a timely manner.

Moreover, the Internal Audit Department also
conducts independent reviews on the adequacy
and effectiveness of these policies and controls to
ensure that the Group is operating according to the
established policies, procedures and credit limits.

Equity Risk

Equity risk arises from fluctuation in the price and
volatility of equities such as stocks, equity portfolio and
stock index futures. The Group does not have proprietary
equity investments. On the other hand, the Group may
be subject to exposure arising from the underwriting
commitments. The Group mitigates its risks by
conducting detailed analysis of the issuer’'s fundamentals
and pricing against market conditions and appetites.
Such risk exposure is also reduced by way of internal
sales and distribution and by sub-underwritings.

Liquidity Risk

The Group’s financing business is a capital intensive
business which may be subject to liquidity risk. As part
of its ordinary brokerage activities, the Group is also
exposed to liquidity risk arising from timing difference
between settlements with clearing houses or brokers
and customers. The goal of liquidity risk management is
to ensure the Group maintains adequate liquid capital
to fund its business commitments as well as to comply
with the relevant Financial Resources Rules applying to
various licensed subsidiaries.

To address the liquidity risk, the Group’s Finance and
Accounts Department and the management will review
and monitor the Group’s liquidity position on daily basis
to ensure availability of sufficient liquid funds. In addition,
the Group has maintained sufficient stand-by banking
and other facilities in order to meet any contingency in
its operations. The management believes the Group’s
working capital is adequate to meet its financial
obligations.
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(4) Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of losses arising from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people, systems
or external events. The Group extends operational risk
management to cover potential losses arising from
legal and compliance breaches. Operational risk is
reduced and controlled through establishing effective
internal controls, clear lines of responsibility, proper
segregation of duties and effective internal reporting and
contingency planning. It is our corporate culture that the
business and operating line management are fully aware
of their responsibilities for managing the operational
risks of their business units on a day-to-day basis.
Independent monitoring and reviews are conducted
by the Compliance Department and the Internal Audit
Department, which report regularly to the management
and the Audit Committee.

D. Internal Controls

The Internal Audit Department is assigned with the task to
perform regular reviews on internal control system of the
Group in respect of operational, financial and compliance
aspects and will alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities, if any, and advise them on the
implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance
the internal controls of the Group. The result of internal audit
reviews and agreed action plans are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Other than review of the Systems, the Audit Committee has
also reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of Inside Information
are in place to ensure, with the assistance of an internal
work team (if required), that any material information which
comes to the knowledge of any one or more officers should
be promptly identified, assessed and escalated, where
appropriate, for the attention of the Board.

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the Systems of
the Group. The Audit Committee and the Board had reviewed
the Systems and were not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s operational, financial and
compliance areas of the Systems.

Emperor Capital Group Limited &5 38724 A R A 7
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy and shall review it on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the Shareholders
mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding of AGM and special
general meetings (“SGM”), if any, which may be convened for
specific purposes which provide opportunities for the Shareholders
to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars
as required under the Listing Rules and press release providing
updated information of the Group; (iii) the availability of latest
information of the Group in the Company’s website at http://
www.emperorcapital.com; (iv) the holding of press conference(s)
from time to time; and (v) meeting with investors and analysts on
a regular basis and participate investor road show and sector
conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’'s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on
the Company’'s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolution were proposed at general meetings for such
substantially issues, including the re-election of retiring Directors.
The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2017 AGM was
sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the
meeting and notices of all other general meetings were sent to
Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the meetings.

The Chairperson of the Board, the chairman/members of the
Board Committees and the external auditor were available at the
2017 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With the
assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll voting
during the meeting.

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on 30 January 2018 which will be conducted by way of poll.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.

Convening a SGM

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of the
Company, Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
of the requisition carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall have the right to submit a written requisition
requiring a SGM to be called by the Board. The written requisition
(i) must state the object(s) of the meeting, and (i) must be signed
by the requisitionists and deposited at the principal office of the
Company for attention of the Company Secretary, and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified with the Company’s
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that
the requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for a
day not more than two months after the date of deposit of a
proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date of
deposit of the requisition. In addition, such meeting convened by
the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Directors.

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any number
of the registered Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, or not less than 100
of such registered Shareholders, can request the Company in
writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the
next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting.
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The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must be deposited
at the principal office of the Company with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses and not less
than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the meeting
in the case of any other requisition Provided that if after a copy of
the requisition requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited
at the principal office of the Company, an AGM is called for a date
six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, such
requisition though not deposited within the time required shall be
deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a person for election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company whose contact details are shown on “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this Annual Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditor, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is independent and has recommended
the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s auditor at the 2018
AGM. During the Year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has
rendered audit services and certain non-audit services to the
Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by the Group is set
out as follows:

Service rendered

P12 4 AR 3%

Audit services
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
EMPEROR CAPITAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Capital Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 73 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 September 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 30 September 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Making another century of impact
REHFE FAMLCT
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

REESEE

RstET FHERERMNEXHE  RoYH
ARG LM BHRERNBAR/EENFE S
LEREAERMEABREFAMBHRRLHA
BRRETREN - LTS EE L EREH
BRMER-

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matter
BRESBR
Impairment allowances for loans and advances

We identified the impairment allowances for loans
and advances as a key audit matter due to the
significant judgement applied by management in
identifying and assessing impairment.

BASERRBRZBERBEE R —RHERETF
TH TR E IR BT AT RE R E A E R H -

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, management identifies and assesses
whether there is objective evidence of impairment
and determines the present value of discounted
estimated future cash flows by taking into account
the value of the underlying collateral, repayment
records of borrowers, current creditworthiness and
other information available for those borrowers in
delinquency or default in repayment.

MINATR A M MR I 4P IR - BIREHEE MV
BRERBEZEHEE WEBEFAKEBAERRERE.
fERAZ BT BRIEEEREAERAERER
REHNZEMAFENBETRRATARREEREZR
B

As at 30 September 2017, the total gross amount of
loans and advances were approximately HK$1,816
million, with impairment allowances of approximately
HK$31.5 million, as set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

201759 A30R » BANER & M5 MR M FE20FTEL - B3R
R E# 4R & X 51,816,000,000%8 7T - H R EREEL
#31,500,000/% 7T °

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BMzEtNAEERREENEHE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
allowances for loans and advances included:

B BEBEERRBRZBEREATHEFEE:

— understanding and evaluating the credit risk
management process, including the process
of periodic reviews for identification of any
delinquency in loans or interest repayment and
determination of the impairment allowances;
THREFEGEERREERY BREHBEHERE
A &R B EAR N EEREREETZEHERH
B

— evaluating the reasonableness of the
management’s assumptions and discount rates
used in the discounted estimated future cash
flows; and
FEEREEZBRLBBREGARKRERENBZ
MEEMNEENE &

— checking the estimated future cash flows by
examining the loan credit files and underlying
documentation and other evidence supporting
the repayment records, value of the collateral
and other information available for those
borrowers in delinquency or default in
repayment.
BAESEREERERLEEAXHAREMEREE
Aaesk B EENEBERAERERIED
ZEMAFEMZER  REGEFAKRERE-
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

BRETSEE (£)

Impairment allowances for accounts receivable from
secured margin clients arising from the business of
dealing in securities

% EHRBEERB NG ABIFREF BN ERF

We identified the impairment allowances for accounts
receivable from secured margin clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities as a key audit
matter due to the significant judgement applied
by management in identifying and assessing
impairment.

BB REESEEEBCEREEERTIREPERZ
BERGEEA - HBAREFFTE HIOIHNEREER
T TE R BT A R (B FRF 58 P B2 K 1l o

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, management identifies and assesses
whether there is objective evidence of impairment
and determines the present value of discounted
estimated future cash flows by taking into account
the value of the underlying collateral, repayment
records of borrowers, current creditworthiness and
other information available for those borrowers in
delinquency or default in repayment.

R BmMERMF4TER EEERERFTFE
BRERELREELE WABATKAEEFAREE
BRAZERTH EREEERBRAERABRER
%fﬁ.‘,%’UZEI@W%EH%EHSE%%?HUE@iﬁiziﬁ

As at 30 September 2017, the total gross amount of
accounts receivable from margin clients arising from
the business of dealing in securities is approximately
HK$4,863 million, with impairment allowances of
approximately HK$3 million as at 30 September
2017, as set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
R2017F9H30H  REEFEEXB 2 RINARERP
AR X 424 %8 49 54,863,000,00078 70 * H 74201749 A
30 R Z R fEEE 41 453,000,000/ 7T * Q04R A B 15 3R % K
FE21FT#L o
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(continued)

BBt nMEERARRTSE ()

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
allowances for accounts receivable from secured
margin clients arising from the business of dealing in
securities included:

B ERAREBFEEXK  EREERTREFER
A BEBEBERITHRF B

— understanding and evaluating the credit risk
management process, including the process of
margin call procedures for margin shortfall and
identification of impaired accounts receivable
from margin clients arising from the business of
dealing in securities;
THREFEEERREERRY BRRIEZTER
ETHEBRECREFAEECREZREESFE
BEBZREAREFPERNER:

— comparing the fair value of the securities
collateral with the accounts receivable from each
individual margin client to determine whether
there was any shortfall as at the year end; and
158 H o 2 A FEEEKRER T REFEREIE
THE NEERFAZRRFEEAIR 2 EE
N4

—  for those margin clients with shortfall,

M EREETRZARELPME

e evaluating the reasonableness of the
management's assumptions and discount
rates used in the discounted estimated
future cash flows; and
AEEREEZBRLMERMEARRREREN
RAzBBRENEEMN: &

e checking the estimated future cash flows by
examining the fair value of the underlying
collateral, historical repayment records
and repayment subsequent to the year end
and other information available for those
borrowers.
RAESHBAER D 2 A VE B LERGCHR
RRERBEERRIARBBERAZEMAIEE
B ZE T R RIRERE -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

3 7 A% B

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

3 7 A% B

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

35 7 A% B

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Eric Tong.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

7 December 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Gi ey TR A by LAt 4 i Wi 25 3%

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHT FH&T
Revenue A 6 986,215
Other operating income Hh g8 & A 3,728
Staff costs B TRKA 7 (93,800)
Commission expenses Ao (70,043)
Other expenses Hh > 1 (124,180)
Finance costs MBER 8 (64,122)
Share of profit (loss) of an associate JE{F —fE & QA2
A (E1R) 17 (3,514)

Share of loss of a joint venture Bl —HeErtEzBIE 18 (20)
Profit before taxation B A5t AT g A 11 634,264
Taxation I8 12 (108,643)
Profit for the year FEREA 525,621
Other comprehensive expense Hih 2 HA X
Item that may be reclassified BB P HE B 2

subsequently to profit or loss: HE
Exchange differences arising on BMEEEXZERZRE

translation (106)
Other comprehensive expense FEHMEERAE

for the year (106)
Total comprehensive income FEXHKEAE

for the year 525,515
Profit for the year attributable to KRAREB AEGEFEE R

owners of the Company 525,621
Total comprehensive income RAGHEBAEBGEEEKERRE

attributable to owners of the

Company 525,515
Earnings per share SRAER 14

Basic BN HK8.95 cents/

Diluted e HK8.95 cents/

Emperor Capital Group Limited REFHEBEGRA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
f B AR DL

At 30 September 2017 74201749 304

74
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2017 2016
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHTT F&T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property and equipment IE Y& 15 3,850
Intangible assets BmEE 16 -
Other assets Hi&EE 19 10,467
Interest in an associate R—EBE R 2R 17 975
Amount due from an associate JE Y — FE Bt & R RIRKIE 17 5,987
Interest in a joint venture R—EaEhbEZER 18 494
Loans and advances ERRER 20 99,890
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 25 -
121,663
Current assets REBEE
Accounts receivable JE YT BR 5K 21 4,688,699
Loans and advances BER KRB 20 1,494,512
Other debtors, deposits and HiEWERENR me Rk

prepayments A KIB 60,990
Tax recoverable A] [5] W % 18 -

Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITIFR
— general accounts ——MRERP 22 110,000

Bank balances and cash RITHBERE
- segregated accounts —BIRRP 23 1,207,856

Bank balances and cash RITEHRRE 2
— general accounts ——RERP 23 480,289
8,042,346



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B AR DL

At 30 September 2017 74201799 4304

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &% FAET F&ET
Current liabilities RBaE
Accounts payable & BR 3K 24 1,548,570
Other creditors and HtEAER L EE A
accrued charges 95,908
Tax liabilities MIEBE 149,570
Short-term bank borrowings RHRITIER 26 550,000
Bonds issued BEETES 27 606,039
2,950,087
Net current assets REBEEFE 5,092,259
Total assets less current liabilities R2EERREBEE 5,213,922
Non-current liabilities kREEE
Bonds issued BEITES 27 964,206
Net assets EEFE 4,249,716
Capital and reserves EXRFEE
Share capital fi& 7 28 61,279
Reserves EH 4,188,437
Total equity AR 4,249,716

The consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 159 were EE=&R2017F 12778 #t/f KX #E T ENE73
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on B EF1598 Z & B KR WH FIEER

7 December 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: REFEERE"
DAISY YEUNG CHAN SHEK WAH
B R 85 2
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE BF

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF]
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

22 N\ D2 p2s
SR ST
For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

Attributable to owners of

ARRER
Capital
Share Share Special  contribution  Translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits
BRipaE il
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
At 1 October 2015 #2015510A1A 57,479 2,553,906 9,950 2,004 79 1,015,486 3,638,904
Profit for the year FEER - - - - - 525,621 525,621
Other comprehensive expense FEEM2ERY
for the year - - - - (106) - (106)
Total comprehensive income FEEEANERE

for the year - -

- - (106) 525,621 525,515

Dividend recognised as distribution BRESRZRE - -
Issue of shares (nofe 28) BARMA (HH28) 3,800 246,998

- - - (165501)  (165,501)
- - - - 250,798

At 30 September 2016 12016595308 61,279 2,800,904

Profit and total comprehensive income  FEEFI K2 EUELE
for the year

Dividend recognised as distribution BREDR RS
Issue of shares (note 28) BOIRG (H228)

At 30 September 2017 #201759A30A

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiary of the Company
in issue and the nominal value of the shares issued by the
Company for acquisition of a subsidiary pursuant to a group
reorganisation on 2 April 2007.

Capital contribution reserve represents the deemed contribution
arising from a fellow subsidiary waiving certain amount of
management fee in previous years.

i

BRATE

all

Emperor Capital Group Limited 275
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

o Bl B E R

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Finance costs
Interest income

Depreciation of property and
equipment

Share of (profit) loss of
an associate

Share of loss of a joint venture

Impairment allowances
for loans and advances

Impairment allowances for
accounts receivable

2017
HK$'000
TET
REED
B 35 51 i A
A
B
FLE KA
MERRBZITE

b —BBERRZ
Cai ) & 18

EH—HEELEZER

ERREBRZ B ERE

R LS B R 2 RN (B B

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Increase in accounts receivable JE LAt BR 32 38 I

Increase in other assets H b & B 2 38 0

Increase in loans and advances B &R N

Decrease (increase) in other Hi RN - 2e Kk
debtors, deposits and TERTRIBE 2R A (3 h0)
prepayments

(Increase) decrease in bank RITHEBERE-BIRFPZ
balances and cash (38 h0) Rk A
- segregated accounts

Increase (decrease) in FERTER B 2 300 O 4)
accounts payable

Decrease in other creditors and HMENERREFER 2B
accrued charges

Cash used in operations AREEsHR&

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBFER

PRC Tax paid 2R EIE

Interest paid
(excluding bond interest)

Interest received

ENME (TEREGBHFFE)

RE Y]

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

®E (AR)KEFH 2R FH

2016
HK$'000
THET

634,264

64,122
(777,058)

2,062

3,514
20

30,975

(42,108)
(1,456,351)
(1,290)
(170,804)

(2,983)

160,252
(118,535)

(7,780)

(1,639,599)
(65,200)
(213)

(14,347)
777,058

(942,301)

Emperor Capital Group Limited REFHEBEGRA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

22 I\ =1
HABlEmER
For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &
2017
Note HK$'000
Bt 5 FHTT
INVESTING ACTIVITY REREE
Purchase of property and BEMERREE
equipment
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ARBREZTBH2HEFHE
ACTIVITY
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMETE
Proceeds from issue of shares BATIRD RIS FRIE 28
Drawdown on bank borrowings REVRITIEK
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITENX
Increase in pledged bank deposits & IR ITFER Z1E N
- general accounts ——REP
Repayment of loans payable EEENER
Proceeds from bonds issuance BITESF S RIAE
Redemption of bonds issued BEEETES
Bonds issuing cost paid EEHFEITHRAR
Interest paid on bonds issued BEHFETENAE
Dividend paid EAR’RE
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM (AR)REMETHZ2EHESTFHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HEeERESEEBY 2L MFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS H#zR&RBEEZEY
AT THE BEGINNING
OF THE YEAR
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE /NEER#8 2%
RATE CHANGES
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HH&zHERESEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF He KB SESEY 2 EH M
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash MITEHR LR
— general accounts ——REF

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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2016
HK$'000
THET

(1,019)

(1,019)

250,798
24,862,063
(24,792,063)

(110,000)
(10,000)
1,016,500
(45,000)
(8,503)
(36,968)
(165,501)

961,326

18,006

462,389
(106)

480,289

480,289



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo Ty S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

1.

General

The Company is incorporated and registered as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and
acts as an investment holding company. The immediate
holding company is Emperor Capital Group Holdings
Limited (“Emperor Capital Holdings”), which is a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”). The ultimate holding company is Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited, a limited liability company incorporated
in the BVI. The entire issued share capital of Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited is, in turn, held by STC International
Limited, being the trustee of The Albert Yeung Discretionary
Trust (the “AY Trust”), a discretionary trust set up by Dr.
Yeung Sau Shing, Albert.

Shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 24 April 2007. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section of this annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo Ty S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time
which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interest in joint operations

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable
and HKAS 38 methods of depreciation and
amortisation

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and position for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for T JA B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Disclosure initiative” for the first time in the current year.
The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity need not
provide a specific disclosure required by an HKFRS if the
information resulting from that disclosure is not material,
and give guidance on the bases of aggregating and
disaggregating information. However, the amendments
reiterate that an entity should consider providing
additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in HKFRS is insufficient to enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of particular
transactions, events and conditions on the entity's financial
position and financial performance.

As regards the structure of the financial statements, the
amendments provide examples of systematic ordering
or grouping of the notes. The Group has applied these
amendments retrospectively. Certain disclosure notes
are reordered following the order of the line items in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Other than the above disclosure changes, the application of
the amendments to HKAS 1 has not resulted in any impact
on the financial performance or financial position of the
Group on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 7 B 5 A i

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations
in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective, which may be relevant to
the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement
of share-based payment
transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets
and HKAS 28 between an investor and its
associate or joint venture?®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative*

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with

negative compensation?

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to

HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 cycle®

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign currency transactions

and advance consideration’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax

treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or
1 January 2018, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o A R e F

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
have contractual terms of the financial asset that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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o B85 HAe it

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities' credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as fair value through

profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

e In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

e The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of
an ‘'economic relationship'. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity's risk

management activities have also been introduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo Ty S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in
the future has an insignificant impact on classification in
respect of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities but
may have a material impact on the measurement in respect
of the Group’s financial assets. The expected credit loss
model may result in early provision of credit losses which
are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial
assets at amortised cost. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed
review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
contracts” and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group's
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

2.

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) and Interpretations (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 30 September 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$16,030,000 as disclosed in note 32. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases upon the application of
HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until
the directors complete a detailed review.

Except for the new standards mentioned above, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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o B85 HAe it

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods or services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as value in use in HKAS 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo Ty S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when
the Company:

e has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group losses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Interest in associate and joint venture

Associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo Ty S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest in associate and joint venture (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associate and joint
venture are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associate and joint ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, investment in an associate and joint venture
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group's share of losses of associates or joint
venture exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that associates or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Interest in associate and joint venture (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate
or a joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion
thereof) is classified as held for sale. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date
and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo Ty S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable arising from financial services and is
recognised on the following basis:

e Commission income for broking business of securities,
futures and option dealing is recorded as income when
the trades are executed.

e Insurance brokerage commission is recognised when
the services are rendered or on straight-line basis over
the claw back period, as appropriate.

e Advisory, other corporate finance services fee income,
asset and wealth management fee income are
recognised when the services are rendered.

e Commission income on underwriting and placing is
recorded as income in accordance with the terms of
underlying agreements when the relevant significant
acts have been completed.

e Handling fee income is recognised when the relevant
transactions have been arranged or the relevant
services have been rendered.

e Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo Ty S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

EXREFBEER (&)

HE (&)

EEBEBERBA (B

T W ER T E 2R AR SR = THE - BB RE
HREAS—RAE- BR8N T
BARERER AR 2 IR M= A
EGAERRKRMEEAFTALRE - HE
BEZ BN s IR R RERR S o

St

TR B ERI KB E R 2 M H iRk A
ZLERRZNBEEE N G (SN ) SHE
IR TR Z A RITERUEER
DeE% (ZEREEMTE LTI BEE
RIRZEH )R8k -HEME R LINER
B R R iR A 2 RITERE
FIRE - RINE 2 ER AT EZIFEH
BB PN FAERRE -

A AT E R B TR K E
MOt 2 3 23R - HAR 5 2 A MR
AR

REFMEREWBHRE  NEEZGINE
B2 BERABIENERENR AT
[ERMESARE 2 25I8% (AET) -

%% 2 WA K S H 5 R F 2 2 F1aE
FigE PELZERZRE (E) IRE
b 2 AR Wi s (REFERE)
NRETe

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF]

ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017 E 55

95



96
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to directors and employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Employment benefit
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo v S 0 A P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employment benefit (continued)
Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, where appropriate, based on
approved formulas that take into consideration the profit
attributable to the Group after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint venture, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo v S 0 A P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effective of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into two
categories, including loans and receivables and available-
for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including accounts receivable, loans and
advances, other debtors and deposits, amount due from
an associate, bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREFHEK (&)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) SRIA(E)
Financial assets (continued) THEE (&
AFS financial assets AR EZ R EE

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in
profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends
is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts receivable and loans and advances,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When the accounts receivable and loans and advances are
considered uncollectible upon the bankruptcy of customers,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For impairment assessment, each receivable is reviewed
individually at the end of each month. Specifically, in
assessing impairment for each receivable, management
estimates the present value of future cash flows which are
expected to be received, taking into account the borrower's
financial situation and the net realisable value of the
underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of the Group.
Any impairment allowance is measured as the difference
between the loan's carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the loan's
original effective interest rate.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo v S 0 A P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
creditors, short-term bank borrowings and bonds issued
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative shall be separated from the host
contract and accounted for as a derivative if, and only if:

e the economic characteristics and risks of the
embedded derivative are not closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the host contract;

e a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and

e the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss (i.e. a derivative that is embedded in a financial
asset or financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss is not separated).

If an embedded derivative is separated, the host contract
shall be accounted for under HKAS 39 if it is a financial
instrument, and in accordance with other appropriate
standards if it is not a financial instrument. The directors
considered that there is no any embedded derivative of the
Group which shall be separated from the host contract.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Emperor Capital Group Limited REFHEBEEGRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of
its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23

o BB HAe it

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Estimated impairment allowances for accounts
receivable from margin clients and loans and
advances

The Group periodically reviews its accounts receivable and
loans and advances to identify any balances with objective
evidence of impairment indicators and assess whether
impairment losses exist individually. When there is objective
evidence of impairment loss, the Group estimates the future
cash flows of assets for impairment testing purpose by
taking into account the value of the underlying collateral,
repayment records of borrowers, current creditworthiness
and other information available for those borrowers in
delinquency or default in repayment. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the financial
conditions of the clients of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, additional impairment losses may arise in future
financial periods.

As at 30 September 2017, the gross carrying amount of
accounts receivable from margin clients is approximately
HK$4,863,029,000 (2016: HK$4,289,537,000), net of
allowances for impairment approximately HK$3,000,000
(2016: HK$nil). The gross carrying amount of loans and
advances is approximately HK$1,815,633,000 (2016:
HK$1,625,373,000), net of allowances for impairment of
approximately HK$31,472,000 (2016: HK$30,971,000).
During the year ended 30 September 2017, impairment
allowances of approximately HK$3,000,000 (2016:
HK$3,000 which were subsequently written off together
with the balances of approximately HK$19,000 previously
recognised in prior year) and HK$501,000 (2016: HK$nil)
had been made on accounts receivable from margin clients
and loans and advances respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o A R F

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers,
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of services

provided.

According to HKFRS 8,

the Group has the following

reportable and operating segments:

(a) Financing -

(b) Brokerage -

(c) Placing and -
underwriting

(d) Corporate -
finance

Provision of margin financing and
money lending services

Provision of securities, options,
futures, insurance, other assets
and wealth management
products broking services and
related handling services

Provision of placing and
underwriting services

Provision of corporate finance
advisory services

7 EBE

SHADFRTEE (EBILERFN) U
HEERKHED BRRZ AR TIEFR

PR AR 2 BB -

RIBBE BV KRG LERIFEST - NEEA N
TR 2HPLEDEL

- REFRBER
BRI

(a) EX

g4 - REHE B
e R -HE
ErRMEEEER
R IRT K
HEFERE

(c) EEEEH - RUEEEBERY

- R EEE B R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2HER (&)
Segment revenue and results DEBRAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and T AREERELEEB IMARER
results from continuing operations by reportable and RA2WMMLEDFRZ2H] 2 9T

operating segment:
For the year ended 30 September 2017 BE2017F9H30H L FE

Placing and Corporate

Financing Brokerage  underwriting finance Elimination Total
EX . REEEH tERE ik 5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TRT TRET TRT TRT BT

REVENUE WA
Segment revenue DERA-HNEEF
- external customers
Inter-segment sales DEHEHE
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEEHEE BT S BRI E -

Placing and Corporate

Brokerage  underwriting finance

B K EREESH rEmME

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT TET TET TET

RESULTS

Segment results DEEE
Unallocated other operating RAAOBEMEENE
income

Unallocated corporate expenses R/ et %8
g

— staff costs (including —BINA(BEESZ
directors’ remuneration e BreE
but excluding staff BIMeX L)
commission expenses)

- management fee to a related ~ —# T — &
company (note 31(a)(ii) RRIZERE

(Hta31(a)i))

- service charge to related — B TBREARZREE
companies (note 31(a)(ii) (B7:#31(a)ii))

- others —HAh

Share of loss of a joint venture ~ [E(E—EA L ¥ 7 EE

Share of profit of an associate  FE{E — & 2 8] 2 & 7

Profit before taxation BR % AT 2 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)
For the year ended 30 September 2016

Financing
B
HK$'000
REVENUE WA
DHRA-IHHEP

Segment revenue

5.

Brokerage

HK$'000
THT

DEER (F)
DEBMARERE (££)
HE20165F9A308 I FE

Placing and
underwriting
RERBH
HK$'000
TET

Corporate
ﬁnance

Elimination

WsH
HK$ OOO HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET

- external customers 773,402 109,206 88,216 15,391 - 986,215
Inter-segment sales AHEEE 133,036 - 19,430 - (152,466) -
906,438 109,206 107,646 15,391 (152,466) 986,215

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DEEHEE HIEBITM S BRI E -

Placing and Corporate
Financing Brokerage  underwriting finance
B s RERESH PERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAL TAT TEL
RESULTS ES
Segment results DEPELE 634,858 24,681 66,894 5,106 731,539
Unallocated other operating RAOBEMEENE
income 61
Unallocated corporate expenses £/ et E A
— staff costs (including -—BINA (BEESZ
directors’ remuneration Me BrEE
but excluding staff BIMeX M)
commission expenses) (64,356)
—management fee to arelated  — % T —fHEE
company (note 31(a)(ii) RAIZERE
(H1a31(a)(i)) (298)
- service charge to related —BTHEARZREE
companies (note 31(a)(ii)) (H1731(a)i)) (13,018)
- others —HAh (16,130)
Share of loss of a joint venture  [EIE—A S ¥ ZEE (20)
Share of loss of an associate FEE— B & DR 2 518 (3,514)
Profit before taxation B 754 A VA 634,264
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o A R A F

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
(including directors’ remuneration and central administrative
staff costs but excluding staff commission expenses),
unallocated other operating income, management fee to
a related company, service charge to related companies,
share of loss of a joint venture and share of profit or loss of
an associate. This is the measure reported to the executive
directors of the Company for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

Other segment information
For the year ended 30 September 2017

Financing

15 45
B

HK$'000

BT

Additions of property and NEWMERZE
equipment

Depreciation of property and MERZHBEITE
equipment

Impairment allowances FEW R R 2 R B RS
for accounts receivable

Impairment allowances ERRBRBERE

for loans and advances

For the year ended 30 September 2016

Financing
HK$'000
BIT
Additions of property and NEWERZE
equipment 110
Depreciation of property and MERZHBITE
equipment 47
Impairment allowances FEWBR R 2 R BB
for accounts receivable -
Impairment allowances ERRBRBERE
for loans and advances 30,975

TEHER (&)

DEWBRAREE (F)

A 2WMO B G BRI 2 K
KBS ETBERAAR © 2 80 K48 % 2 JFPr
BRERZ 55 A AR D BC P RITHRACAS (815
EE7Me P RITBEIRA ELE
mETHESH) RO BCEAE S
RYHBEERRZEER KTHER
AlZREE BIE—HAEERZEBRR
JEAE — B2 AR 2 F B 1R © Lt A TA)
RRARMITEE 2 RAR D BB R KT
EEE A -y

Hth 7 s EH
BZE201759A30A L FE

Placing and
underwriting
foE EEiH
HK$'000
THET

Corporate
finance
TEERE
HK$'000
THET

Brokerage
HK$'000

THET TET

B ZE2016F9H30R L FE

Placing and
underwriting
foE E e
HK$'000
THT

Corporate
finance
RERE
HK$'000
FHT

Total
et
HK$'000
THT

Brokerage

909 - - 1,019
1,987 - 18 2,052
3 - - 3

- - - 30,975
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The following illustrates the geographical analysis of the
Group's revenue from its external customers, based on
the country from which the trades are derived in relation to
brokerage revenue from overseas products trading or/and
based on the country in which the customers are located
in relation to financing, placing and underwriting and
corporate finance revenue.

Hong Kong
United States ES
Others Hib

DEER (Z)

i & & #

AT AREBREEINIRE 2 WA Z
DN BRI EBINERR DEE K
LA S » DERZ S IR 5, &5t
ER REEpHEMOCEREVATS
PEABRFHEZEHERK -

Revenue

WA
2017

2016
HK$'000
TAET

HK$'000
THET

All non-current assets held by the Group are located in
Hong Kong.

Information about major customer

For the year ended 30 September 2017, no single customer
amounts to more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 30 September 2016, the aggregated
revenue from three customers of the Group’s financing
segment, who are under common control, represents
approximately HK$127.2 million or 12.9% of the Group’s
revenue.

AEEMFHAZABIERBEEDUNE
e

FHEEEFZEH

HZE2017F9A30H FFE - s —RF
BEAARERE W AZEI10%IA £ o

H Z22016F9A30H IEFE KB AEE
ERD X EREHN =8P 28U
A#95127,200,00076 7T (h AN 2 B U A B9
12.9% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o A R F

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

6. REVENUE

Commission and fees income
on dealing in securities

Commission and fees income
on dealing in futures and
options contracts

Commission from insurance
brokerage and wealth management

Corporate finance advisory services
fee income

Placing and underwriting commission
Interest income from:

Margin and initial public offer
financing (“IPO”)

Loans and advances
Bank deposits
Others

BEENEREANZ
BeMkERKA

KR hkMEERE 2@
TPEREBEMRBEERA

EENBHEAE
ATRIEB ZFBHA
FREBRAFABKRERE
(TERDFEAR])
BRI ER
RITFR
Hh
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

7. STAFF COSTS 7. BIRA

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT

Staff costs represent the amounts paid B IHAEENKENTES
and payable to the directors and NEBZ 28 BiF:
employees and comprise:

T AL RORRL
E yi=)

Salaries, bonus and allowances E= %
Contributions to retirement ROKAE A ETEIH R
benefits scheme

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WKEAR

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET THET

Interest on: THEE Z A
Bank overdrafts and loans RITEZRER
Loans payable & E K
Bonds issued BEEITES
Others HAh
Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF] 113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 9. EENERAITHAEBZHME
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 7 (2016: 7) B ERERN F7AL (20165 : 7)) EE N &
directors and the chief executive were as follows: BITBABZMESAT
For the year ended 30 September 2017 BZE2017F9A30H LLFE

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
#i7E%

Choi
Daisy Chan Suk Hing, ea Poon
Yeung W Louisa ar Wing Yan Wai

ClE] B4 AR
HK$'000

Fees ne

Other remuneration Efoe
Salaries and allowances FeREH
Discretionary bonus (Note (a)) WBTEL (Wi(a)
Contributions to retirement R EIEER

benefits scheme

Total remuneration Weng

For the year ended 30 September 2016 HZE2016F9A30H L F/E

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
$7E%

Choi
Chan Suk Hing, Poon Wan
Shek Wah Louisa a Yan Wai Choi Ha

R&E ZH A
HK$'000
THL T BT TATL T
( (Note (c)) (Note (c))

Fees e 150 150 150 150 210 210 210 1,230
Other remuneration Ethfie
Salaries and allowances EE 31 1,999 4295 2,187 1,887 - - - 10,368
Discretionary bonus (Note (a)) BB (W) 5,000 5,000 1,142 833 - - - 11,975
Contributions to retirement R BIEER
benefits scheme 17 18 153 136 - - - 324
Total remuneration MewE 7,166 9,463 3,632 3,006 210 210 210 23,897
114 Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EeEEITRAEZHME

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Discretionary bonus is determined as regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and its subsidiaries. There was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

Ms Daisy Yeung is also the Chief Executive of the Company and her
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by her as Chief Executive. No apportionment has been made as it
is impracticable to apportion this amount among her services to the
Company and its subsidiary.

(b)

BISEANRFAEBEEEE BAX
B R TS EET A L BB T E

EXRAIBITESENHS T ZRWEER
RELEMBARER FHBBERBEH R
B RAFER  EEHBRIBER TR
HHFABHEERETAME

ERFAIFEATETOME D EZREE
BEARRALEANBAREZESHHRH - R
REERN BEEHERBTARFERER
AEMEANEAME -

B[R LT RARAZRSITRARIAR
ERFABEZMEEEREARIITRA
B ZREMESZHE - AN R
B ARE REMERRREIREME
M EITIRE P D5 B EE R EA D
o

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF]
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017 ¥}

115



116

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o A R F

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

10. EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

The five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group included three (2016: four) directors of the Company
for the year ended 30 September 2017, details of whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 9
above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2016: one)
individuals for the year were as follows:

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind

Bonus TE4L

Contributions to retirement RORAEFFHEIH R

benefits scheme

e RREREYREN

10. EEM <

RE E2017F9A30H It FE KNEE ~
hEEeSHFMALTBIERARF =% (2016
FOB)ES HFEZMSFBR LS
TTOWEE - AAFE - EpmE (20165 —
BIANTZHEWT

The remunerations were within the following bands:

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000

2,500,001 7T £3,000,000/% 7T
3,500,001 7T 24,000,000/ 7T
7,000,001 7T £7,500,000/% 7T

B TR

Number of employees
EB AR

2017 2016

During the year, no remuneration has been paid by the
Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

11. BR# AR R

Profit before taxation has been arrived
at after charging:

B A5 B a8 A1 2 HRR -

Included in other expenses: BEREMEH

Auditor’s remuneration % ERAD BN & 1,743
Depreciation of property and MEREZE2ITTE

equipment 2,052
Net exchange loss & N BB 55 135
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREZKEHENRS

— rented premises —HEWE 13,227

— office equipment —WAERE 12
Other equipment hiring charges HEa s BEHEARX 6,701
Impairment allowances for loans and ERRBRZBERE

advances (note 20) (Ktit20) 30,975
Impairment allowances for accounts JE W BR R BB B

receivable (note 21) (fiat21)

12. TAXATION

Current year:

Hong Kong Profits Tax BAENEH

PRC Enterprise Income Tax hE G RMAEH
Overprovision in prior year: BEFEBBEREE:

Hong Kong BB

REE:

12. B8

2017
HK$'000
TETT

2016
HK$'000
TAETT

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the People's Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC

subsidiaries is 25%.

RREFE BB ERTshhT B
SR AIE165% 2 TRt & o

RIBEPEARKMBEERAETOE (TR
PRSTUA]) R RPISTORE BRG] -
BB R R 2R 25% e

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

12. TAXATION (continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

13.

Profit before taxation

B 35 BT A

12. %18 (&)

AFEHEREES B MEMEERER
Fr bR A m M BR 20T

Taxation at income tax rate of 16.5%

#£16.5% 2 FT5HifE X

AEZBE 104,654

Tax effect of expenses not deductible — SR = Al FE 2 H 2

for tax purpose mBEE 856
Tax effect of income not taxable BB mEBERBRBAZ

for tax purpose MG E (388)
Overprovision in respect of prior years 81t F[ZBEE (159)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K EAERKEEBZHETE 3,061
Tax effect of share of (profit) loss of SME—EEERR CaFl)

an associate EBRZBBEE 580
Others HAth 39
Taxation charge for the year RNFE R IBF

As at 30 September 2017, the Group had unused estimated
tax losses of approximately HK$104,036,000 (2016:
HK$75,859,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

DIVIDENDS

Recognised as distribution:

Interim dividend paid: HK$0.0138 per
share (2016: HK$0.012 per share)

Final dividend paid in respect of 2016:

HK$0.0128 per share (2016: HK$0.016

per share in respect of 2015)

HERIED K :

ENRERR

#F[%0.01287% 7T
(20164 :
0.016/57T)

- 9 H%0.01385 7T
(20164 : &f%0.0127%&T)
F2016FE D 2 REARL B,

#2015 & UK

R20179F9A30H @ A& & A A 1E K 38
R HEF KB ABAREBEENA
104,036,0005% 7T (20164 : 75,859,000/
J0) c AR AR E TR E N AT B8 - I FE Rk
ZEBEBBREREERIEEE - KEA
2 TEE R ] PR HAs EE o

13. R 2

2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$'000

TET TETT

165,501

Emperor Capital Group Limited REFHEEBRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

13. DIVIDENDS (continued) 13. RE (&)
The directors recommended the payment of a final dividend BEEEHRMNEZE2017F9A308 IEF
of HK1.52 cents per share amounting to approximately EZ KRR BEEFRI28M - &N A
HK$102,461,000 in aggregate in respect of the year ended 102,461,000/ 7T (20164F : FLE £20164F9
30 September 2017 (2016: final dividend paid in respect A30R L FEEN 2 KRB EF1.28%
of the year ended 30 September 2016 of HK1.28 cents ili- & £ 49586,283,000/8 7T) * B F %
per share amounted to approximately HK$86,283,000 in RRARGE Z EERFBFRE LHER
aggregate), which is subject to approval of the shareholders A{EE -
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 3R&EF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RAREE ANERIGESRERRESRTTY
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the B TINBETE -

following data:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

Earnings EF
Earnings for the purpose of basic and  FARFFEFRER K

diluted earnings per share BERN 2 BF

Number of shares R EE
Weighted average number of ARFABESRERRET 2

ordinary shares for the purposes of B nkE T 8

basic earnings per share 5,874,612
Effect of dilutive potential BB BT BRI TE:

ordinary shares:
Share options of the Company (note) KNARZERRE (Kit)

Weighted average number of ARTESRESRFZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of @A N g 2

diluted earnings per share 5,874,612

Note: All the outstanding share options were lapsed during the prior year Bt FIBRTEBRESNBEFEANKX
and they had no effect on the dilutive potential ordinary shares B B KRET BT R AR
before they were lapsed. Mo
Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF] 119
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 15. M ERFE
Furniture Computer
Leasehold and and other Motor
improvements fixtures ipme vehicle
‘ &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 ( HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL BT AT BT T FAT
cosT RE
At 1 October 2015 #0155 10410 12,345 1928 6,165 14,344 673 35,455
Additions RE 158 20 108 733 - 1019
At 30 September 2016 2016494308 12,503 1,948 6,273 15,077 673 36,474
Additions RE 2,130 196 245 435 - 3,006
At 30 September 2017 R201749A30A 14,633 2,144 6,518 15,512 673 39,480
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION it E
At 1 October 2015 2015510410 10,224 1727 5,799 12,699 123 30572
Provided for the year rEERE 992 89 281 555 135 2,052
At 30 September 2016 201659430 11,216 1816 6,080 13,254 258 32,624
Provided for the year rEEEE 686 85 260 572 135 1,738
At 30 September 2017 2017594308 11,902 1,901 6,340 13,826 393 34,362
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 September 2017 12017594308 2,731 243 178 1,686 280 5,118
At 30 September 2016 20169 A30A 1,287 132 193 1,823 415 3,850
All the above items of property and equipment are FE bt 2 Y3 R E1E B B RIR
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the rate of 20% 0% FERFLANE Y EREIZAR
per annum, except that leasehold improvements are I5F (ABREERE) TUFE-

depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms or 5 years.

120 Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

16.

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B &EE
HK$'000
FET
COST A
At 1 October 2015, 30 September 2016 and R2015F 10818 20169 830H &
30 September 2017 201799 H30H 9,802
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B RRE
At 1 October 2015, 30 September 2016 and 20159 10H1H ~ 20169 AH30H &
30 September 2017 201799 H30H 9,802
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 30 September 2017 201749 H30H -
At 30 September 2016 R2016F9H30H -
Trading rights are amortised over 10 years from the effective R 51 5 20005F B A2 A ~ BB BRI P Je &
day of the merger of the Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong BRREEER AR ZE M EREBRER
Futures Exchange and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing 105 T DA 54 -
Company Limited in year 2000.
INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 17 A—HEBELAT ZES

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

TETT THIT

Cost of investment in an RIEEMEERF 2R EKAK
unlisted associate
Share of post-acquisition profit and W ER R R EM2EmkKs

other comprehensive income

Amount due from an associate (Note 1) R —FEH# & R AHE (Hat1)

Emperor Capital Group Limited REFHEBEGRA
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017 i#&

121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17.R—EBE QT 2R (&)
As at 30 September 2016 and 30 September 2017, the R20169F9A30H K201749830H » A%
Group had interest in the following associate: BN TR RA s -

Proportion of
Form of nominal value
business Place of Class of of issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation share held held by the Group Principal activity
e1 K It
2017 2016
(Note 2) (Note 2)
Hi2) :
Boom High Investment Limited Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 28%  Trading in securities and
(“Boom High") Islands shares investment in funds
BAREERAA(ER])  mfsT KEALEE  HAR BREERELNRA

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET

AEBREHBELEETZ

The Group’s share of profit (loss) from

continuing operations A (B R)
The Group’s share of total AEBERELEZERKE
comprehensive income (expense) (FX)#B%E
Aggregate carrying amount of REBRBERNTRERZ
the Group’s interest in the associate RHEEE
Notes: Mt -
(1) The amount due from an associate is unsecured, non-interest (1) ER—HEERIRELSEERR 28K
bearing and has no fixed term of repayment. I R E R .
(2) The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Boom High @) EEEAZKE.EC_% ko BEEEPHERR
because it has more than 20% voting rights in its daily operation. 20% 2 RERE  WAEE I HRKITHEE
PN 2= Yl
122 Emperor Capital Group Limited REFHEEBRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

18.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 1. R—RHEELEZERSE
Details of the Group's investment in a joint venture are as REER—EEEREZRE ZFBN
follows: T:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

TBTT THIT

Cost of investment in a joint venture R—HEaEEEZREKA

Share of post-acquisition loss and JE A W 12 5 18 K EL M 2 T A 2
other comprehensive expense

Proportion of
Form of nominal value
business Place of Class of of issued capital
Name of entity structure incorporation share held held by Principal activity
£ shEEp  afiRoeE FERGE RAEE LS
2017 2016
Emperor Shiying Finance Limited  Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 55%  Money lending
("ESFL") share
REtHBHBERAR Bl ) LEk B
([k2ta])

Note: As at 30 September 2017, the Group held 55 units of shares, Wit 201799 A30H - REE I B558% K
representing 55% interests in the joint venture. The shares provide 7 HEERNEG B 55% R « ZER
the Group with the share of returns from the joint venture. MEAEESZREGEREZBR-

Pursuant to the contractual agreement, unanimous consent BEEHNHRER GECECFBEEENK

of the parties sharing control is required for all the key REBEBRTADZEGIE ST A

financing and operating decisions in the joint venture. As B o R2017F9H30R &20165F9H30H -

of 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2016, the Group REEFEEEDERN 255%  MmEAM
held 55% of the shares of the joint venture and the other BURRNBBE=FTFB - DEEHIELL

45% shares are held by a third party. The arrangement of T RE S A O AETE - Al AN&EE

sharing of control is contractually agreed by both parties. REBHRZESEIEREEDSE-

As such, the interest of the Group in ESFL is classified as a
joint venture.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 1. R— ¥R (&)

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000
T THEIT

The Group’s share of loss from REBRGRELEEBZ
continuing operations B8

The Group’s share of total AEBERLMEHEMAZEE
comprehensive expense

Aggregate carrying amount of REBREELERERZ
the Group’s interest in the joint venture  BREAR{E

19. OTHER ASSETS 19. Htht EE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fisn B

REREAMEE

Statutory and other deposits

Statutory and other deposits represent deposits with various EEREMRSEFRTRAR S RER
exchanges and clearing houses. They are non-interest IR ® ZERERRE -
bearing.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B A5 R W

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

20. LOANS AND ADVANCES 20 ER KRB

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

TETT THIT

Fixed-rate loans receivable FE UL E TE R R E 1,584,582
Variable-rate loans receivable EUE BER 40,791

1,625,373
Less: Individually assessed R BRI h  R E

impairment allowances (30,971)

1,694,402

Analysed as: DT

Current BN E 1,494,512

Non-current ERENFE 99,890
1,594,402

The carrying amount of the Group’s fixed-rate and variable- REE 2 EWEFE M ERZEERZRE

rate loans receivable have remaining contractual maturity BERFHRENEEHEEYMT

dates as follows:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET

Fixed-rate loans receivable: FEYE T ARG
Within one year —FA 1,456,305
In more than one year but —FREAFA
no more than five years 37,094
Over five years hF1% 46,508
1,639,907
Past due but not impaired BAMERRE 13,704
1,558,611
Variable-rate loans receivable: JEUUE BB
Within one year —F A 25,181
In more than one year but —FREAFNH
no more than five years 1,961
Over five years hF& 13,649
Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF] 125
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Note: As at 30 September 2017, included in the fixed-rate loans
receivable were balances of approximately HK$10,007,000 (2016:
HK$13,704,000) which had been past due but not impaired. Taking
into account the creditworthiness of the borrowers, collateral
value and executable subsequent settlement arrangements, the
executive directors of the Company considered that no allowance
for impairment was necessary as at 30 September 2017 (2016:
HK$nil).

The effective interest rates of the Group’s loans receivable
are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fo T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

20. LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued) 20.BERRBR(E)

Hat: 20179 9H308  EWEE M EE XK
& H A #910,007,000# 7T (20164 :
13,704,000/ 7T ) 4 #2 4¢ 2 8 BB R E
BE - KERERAZEEE HARE
BERAETHELZEZHE ARRHT
EERA EA2017¢9H30E|4HW’HH
B (20164 : BB T) o

AEBERWERZ BREMZIT

2017 2016

Effective interest rates:
BRAx:
Fixed-rate loans receivable
& W& 7E A = & K 5 A0.42%Z£3.99%

Variable-rate loans receivable Prime rate per annum to
prime rate + 3% per annum

JE U2 8 B =N

As at 30 September 2017, 89 (2016: 37) secured loans with
the aggregate amount of approximately HK$798,016,000
(2016: HK$373,816,000) were secured by first legal
charges in respect of respective properties located in Hong
Kong. The collateral for each individual loan is sufficient
to cover the loan amount on an individual basis. They
were advanced to various independent borrowers and
will be due for repayment within 1 to 30 years (2016: 1 to
25 years). The remaining balance of the loans receivable
amounting to approximately HK$986,145,000 (2016:
HK$1,220,586,000) were unsecured and were provided
to independent third parties of the Group, of which the
loan amount of approximately HK$474,869,000 (2016:
HK$382,050,000) were with second or third legal charges in
respect of properties located in Hong Kong and will be due
for repayment within 1 to 30 years (2016: 1 to 25 years) from
the respective loans' date of advance.

As at 30 September 2017, each of the fixed-rate and
variable-rate secured loans receivable represented less
than 10% of the gross loans and advances balance.

As at 30 September 2016, for unsecured loans receivable,
there were two fixed-rate unsecured loans receivable, which
each exceeded 10% of the gross loans and advances
balance respectively, with the aggregated amount of
approximately HK$331,633,000 and represented 20% of the
gross loans and advances balance. Each of the remaining
fixed-rate and variable-rate unsecured loans receivable
represented less than 10% of the gross loans and advances
balance.

Emperor Capital Group Limited REFHEBEEGRA
ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

BEREENREEFREENRLI%

0.42% per month to 3.99% per month 0.25% per month to 3.83% per month

5 H0.25%%3.83%

Prime rate per annum to
prime rate + 3% per annum

BEFERESNEEGFREENE+3%

R201759A30R » 8918 (20164 : 37
18 ) 48 %8 £9798,016,000/% 7T (20164
373816000,%75)2ﬁ$f€ﬁff KT AE B
Wf%%z —EEHREER - SERE
FTHERBEAERSEEREE %25
fﬁfw@@ﬁ%y%ﬁﬂﬁ NI =Y
Z30%F (20164F - 12254 ) NE|HAEE - &
I B TR 4 58 49986,145,0007% 7T (20164
1,220,586,00078 7T ) Jh A& IR I 45 F K
SEB 2B E =T EH4)474,869,0007%8
7t (20164 : 382,050,00058 7T ) 7 EF LA
EEWMEZFE _RNFEZATF L AER
WHERHSEBERZ BN HERI1E
304 (20164 : 1E254 ) A EIHAEE -

MA20174F9 A30H - XIEM&ZIE?IJY&;%
BEEBERYLRER BN EHE
210% o

#2016&9)?305 LR WK IR E 2Rm

IERENE TR RERFERS B
s_iéffk&@m LEAEEE 2 10%  HAFBEN
331,633,000/ 8 70 (FE R R B R 4Eer 4058
220% ° 4 NS TE U E T FIR K% B &
KREZYVRER N ARG ATE Y
10% o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o A R F
For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

20. LOANS AND ADVANCES (continued)

Movements in the allowances for impairment are as follows:

20. ERNEBR(£F)
AR ERBWT

2017 2016
HK$'000

HK$'000

TBTT THIT

Balance at the beginning of the year FH 2
Amount write off during the year FAMEZ R
Provision for the year FANEE
Balance at the end of the year FRZ B

To minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk, the Group
has established credit policies to ensure all loans and
advances are subject to credit risk assessment and ongoing
monitoring, including evaluation of customers’ credit ratings,
financial background and repayment abilities. The Group
has a policy for assessing the impairment allowances for
loans and advances on an individual basis. The assessment
is based on a close monitoring and evaluation of the
collectability of individual account and on management's
judgement, including the current creditworthiness of the
borrowers, collateral value and the past collection history of
each individual borrower. Taking into account the above, the
executive directors of the Company have made allowances
for impairment of approximately HK$31,472,000 (2016:
HK$30,971,000) as at 30 September 2017. The Group has
commenced legal proceedings against the borrowers of
these impaired loans for recovery of the loan amount of
approximately HK$30,971,000. As at the reporting date of
the consolidated financial statements, the legal proceedings
are still in progress.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and advances
approximate their fair value.

AREALENEERR ~AEBE BT
EEBR  UBRABEEREBFZ(E
BRI E RIS EEE (BRETIEERZ
B SR RMEREN) FTRR -
AN B R A R {E B T B S R B FOR,
EREZBOR - BETH I ERBREER
HEREE KB 2 HEUANEEE Y
HEr (RIESBERIERAZEREREE K
HREEMBEENCE) LB E Ll E
I AR RIMITESEER20174F9A308 1k
t £931,472,0007% 7T (20164F : 30,971,000
BIL) 2 BERE KB EMZERAE
BEFNERARRERZFAUREERL
30,971,000/ 7T - Rz E4r & ST 25
BHR SRR FDIEEITE -

REBZ ER R BR 2 REERE A E
5 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o A R F

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

21. EUIRER X

2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$'000

T THEIT

Accounts receivable from REBHFEEEBZ
the business of dealing in JE W BR 3K
securities:
Clearing houses, dealers, HE - R58 K Rk
brokers and cash clients ReERP 156,162
Secured margin loans FERAFEER 4,289,537

IPO margin loans

Accounts receivable from

the business of dealing in JE W BR 3K
futures contracts:
Clearing houses and brokers HEERRER

Accounts receivable from
the business of corporate finance

BRAFARAIRER

KEHMEANEERERKL

KAMDERE RS 2RI

5,867

Less: Individually assessed
impairment allowances

R B Rl 2 R (E

4,688,699

4,688,699

The settlement terms of accounts receivable, except for
secured margin loans and IPO margin loans, arising from
the business of dealing in securities are two days after trade
date, and of accounts receivable arising from the business
of dealing in futures contracts are one day after trade date.

Normal settlement terms of accounts receivable from
the business of corporate finance are determined in
accordance with the contractual terms. The Group seeks
to maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts
receivable from the business of corporate finance in order to
minimise the credit risk.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o A R F
For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 21. EWBRX (&)

As at 30 September 2017, the total market value of
securities pledged as collateral in respect of the
secured loans to margin clients was approximately
HK$28,270,000,000 (2016: HK$19,311,416,000). 88%
(2016: 86%) of the loans were secured by sufficient
collateral on an individual basis. Management has assessed
the market value of the pledged securities of each individual
customer who has margin shortfall as at the year end.

Details of impairment allowances in respect of the secured
loans to margin clients are as follows:

M2017F9H30R " RETFTHREFP Z
BB RMIEAEAR TR 55
2 B 48584 /528,270,000,0007% 7T (2016
% :19,311,416,000/8 7T ) - B X 2 88%
(20165 : 86% ) IR & B =LA B #4E # a
{ER IR - BB EE N FRTH S ERIRE
S TNEEFPIEIESME.

ERREHNTAREFP 2B EMER ZRIE
BB

2017 2016
HK$'000

HK$'000

TBTT THIT

Balance at the beginning of the year FY 2
Provision for the year FNEE
Amount write off during the year FAMEz 5
Balance at the end of the year FRZEH

No further impairment allowance is considered necessary
for the remaining margin loans based on the Group’s
evaluation of their collectability. The loans to margin clients
bear variable interest at commercial rates and are repayable
on demand. No collateral was pledged for other accounts
receivable.

As at 30 September 2017, accounts receivable from
foreign brokers denominated in Australian dollar,
Japanese Yen, Singapore dollar and United States dollar
were approximately HK$230,000 (2016: HKS$nil), HKS$nil
(2016: HK$66,000), HK$4,000 (2016: HK$6,000) and
HK$148,482,000 (2016: HK$178,081,000) respectively.

As at 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2016, no
individual account represented more than 10% of the total
balance of accounts receivable.

No ageing analysis of secured margin loans and PO
margin loans is disclosed as in the opinion of the executive
directors of the Company, the ageing analysis does not give
additional value in view of the nature of this business.

ENAEEHEAYEE 2 FFHE HERA
MELERS T HFRERELE—PRIE
BE-RUTAREPZEFRIHAE
MEE B AN BREERE - B EUSR
KA EIER G

HR2017F9 A30R « FEUIRIME 42 LUR T »

HIE -~ #rhns T R ETTRHE Z RUER K5
B 49 /230,000 7T (20164F : A& L) »

T35 7T (20164F : 66,00078 7T) * 4,000/8 7T
(2016%F : 6,0007% 7T ) X 148,482,000/ 7T
(20164F : 178,081,000 7T ) °

201799 H308 k201698308 - 1 &
12 B B T 1 JE UK BR TR AL AR 4B RE10% A | o

ARRMITESA R REBKEERE
RREE DT 2 I INEBENK  RAERES
HEMAFREZRLERAABRARERZ
ARER AT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 A 203
o A R F
For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

21. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The ageing analysis of the remaining of the accounts
receivable are as follows:

Past due: BHR
0 - 30 days 0-30H
31 - 60 days 31-60H
61 - 90 days 61-90H

Over 90 days #B:B90H

21. EWERRR (&)
9T REMR 2 BRI DTN T

2017 2016
HK$'000

HK$'000

TETT THIT

Accounts receivable which were past due 2 # H18 T BB (B 2 & U Bk X

but not impaired

Accounts receivable which were neither
past due nor impaired

380 H IT S ERUE 2 B MR R

1,130

392,165

393,295

To minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk, the
Group has a policy for reviewing impairment allowances
for accounts receivable without sufficient collateral and
those with default or delinquency in interest or principal
payment. The assessment is based on an evaluation of
the collectability and ageing analysis of the accounts
and on management’'s judgement including the current
creditworthiness, collateral value and the past collection
history of each customer. Management had set up the
credit limits for each individual customer which are subject
to regular reviews by the management. Any extension of
credit beyond these approval limits has to be approved
by relevant level of management on an individual basis
according to the exceeded amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

22.

23.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS — GENERAL
ACCOUNTS

Pledged bank deposits EEBRITER

22.

EEABRITER-—REF

2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$'000

TETT THIT

The deposits of HK$160,000,000 (2016: HK$110,000,000)
with a bank were to secure the banking facilities granted
to the Group to the extent of HK$530,000,000 (2016:
HK$380,000,000), of which HK$315,000,000 was utilised
as at 30 September 2017 (2016: HK$260,000,000). The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement
of relevant bank borrowings.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances RITHE R
— segregated accounts (Note)

— general accounts and cash

—BIKRF (KiE)
——REFPERE

23.

8 77 17 3160,000,0007%8 7T (20164 :

110,000,000/8 7t ) B 1E & 2N & B JE %
iR 17 R & & %530,000,000/% JT (2016
% :380,000,000/8 7v) 2 - E A
315,000,000/ 7T B 720179 A30H & &)
A (20164 : 260,000,00078 7T ) ° % % 2 1K
HIRTTF RS 45 B R IR TR SRBT MR
[ﬁ/@ °

RITERRRE

2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$'000

T TAIT

1,207,856
480,289

1,688,145

Note: The Group receives and holds money deposited by clients and
other institutions in the course of the conduct of the regulated
activities. These clients' money are maintained in one or more
segregated bank accounts and bear interest at commercial rates.
The Group has recognised the corresponding accounts payable
to respective clients and other institutions. However, the Group
currently does not have an enforceable right to offset those

payables with the deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2017, bank balances and cash
denominated in Japanese Yen, United States dollar,
Renminbi and Singapore dollar, are approximately
HK$5,000 (2016: HK$25,000), HK$299,082,000 (2016:
HK$231,853,000), HK$28,235,000 (2016: HK$23,365,000)
and HK$10,969,000 (2016: HK$2,520,000) respectively.

The general accounts and cash comprise cash held by the
Group and bank deposits bearing interest at commercial
rates with original maturity of three months or less.

Wyt

FETRREEBBRED A LB
REFEEP REMEERZHR %
EERPHBAFEN —ERZEFLRTT
RPARIZAENEG B - NEE D ®
RENTEEETP LEMEREZARK
e AT - AR EER B W MIAFA 2 1R
S HZE RN IR Z AR B ITE -

R2017F9A308 - LAHE - FET AR
REF M T EZRITELRIRE D F
%9 /85,0005 7T (20164F : 25,0007 7T)

299,082,000/% 7T, (20164F : 231,853,000/
JT) 28,235,000/ 7T (20164 : 23,365,000
7 70) &% 10,969,000 jT (20164 :

2,520,000/ 7T ) °

—REF R RS BERAEERE RS R
FRRTERIR A S B REIE B = (LA kX
P2 SRITER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o A R F

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

24. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable from
the business of dealing in
securities:

e AR :

KEBHFEEXRBZ

24. B RRRX

2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$'000

T THEIT

Clearing houses and brokers HEHET &R 54,031

Margin and cash clients FREREEP 1,131,907
Accounts payable from REPEGNEBERZ

the business of dealing in JERTER K :

futures contracts:

Margin clients FRERP

1,548,570

The settlement terms of accounts payable, except for
margin clients, arising from the business of dealing in
securities are two days after trade date and accounts
payable arising from the business of dealing in futures
contracts are one day after trade date. No ageing analysis
is disclosed as in the opinion of the executive directors of
the Company, the ageing analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of this business.

Accounts payable to margin and cash clients arising
from the business of dealing in securities bear variable
interest at commercial rates, and are repayable on demand
subsequent to settlement date.

Emperor Capital Group Limited REFHEEBRA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

24.

25.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (continued)

Included in accounts payable, amounts of approximately
HK$1,854,475,000 and HK$1,207,856,000 as at 30
September 2017 and 30 September 2016 respectively were
payable to clients and other institutions in respect of the
segregated bank balances received and held for clients and
other institutions in the course of conducting the regulated
activities. However, the Group currently does not have an
enforceable right to offset these accounts payable with the
deposits placed.

As at 30 September 2017, accounts payable denominated
in Australian dollar, Japanese Yen, United States dollar
and Renminbi were approximately HK$84,000 (2016:
HK$nil), HK$5,000 (2016: HK$91,000), HK$356,589,000
(2016: HK$330,961,000) and HK$13,633,000 (2016:
HK$16,396,000) respectively.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

The Group holds 15% equity interest in Emperor Investment
Fund Limited (“EIFL"). EIFL had no business operations and
had net liabilities as at 30 September 2016 and 2017.

In the opinion of the executive directors of the Company, the
equity interests held by the Group in EIFL are with a primary
objective for capital appreciation and recognised as an
available-for-sale investment.

The executive directors of the Company consider the
fair value of the EILF as at 30 September 2016 and 30
September 2017 are approximated to zero with reference to
the net liabilities of EILF.

24.

25.

AR (&)

RIETERE XS BRETR AP REM
MBI 358 2 B RTESmE R
201749 A30R 201659 A30 R ~ FETER
HERARNRR REMEES 2 REDY
B4 A1,854,475,0007%8 7T }21,207,856,000
PETT o SR - AR BIR R E AT T2 1%
SR EEMBRR Z Al R BT THE

R2017F9A308 - LBt HIE - E TR
A REESHE 2 B BR 9 Bl 49 A£84,000
Bt (20164 : 28 7T) ~ 5,000/ 7T (2016
£ : 91,000/ JT) * 356,589,000/ JT (2016
% : 330,961,000/ 7T ) &% 13,633,000/ 7T
(2016%F : 16,396,000/ 7T ) °

AHHERE
AEBFEAERERERSHER AR ([H
EREES|)15%REIE - REREHESR
20164 201749 A30H 7 # ¥ 75 4 18
RS aEFE.

ARARITESERR AREREERE
He A 2T ER N RS RKEXRTT
B UHERRAIHLERE-

AKRBITESTRE RERERELES
ZaEFE RERERESM20169F9H30
B NM2017%F9A30H 2 A FEZARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

26. SHORT-TERM BANK BORROWINGS 26. HHISRITER
As at 30 September 2017, included in the short-term bank M2017F9A30H B HRITHE K
borrowings of HK$328,511,000 (2016: HK$550,000,000) 328,511,000/ 7T (20164F : 550,000,000
were bank borrowings of HK$315,000,000 (2016: 7 70) B 1E #R 77 f& 5315,000,000/% 7T
HK$260,000,000) which were secured by bank deposits (20164F : 260,000,00058 7T) * F A& E R
of the Group (note 22). As at 30 September 2016, short- T KB AR (M 7E22) - 72016679830
term bank borrowings of HK$70,000,000 were secured H - 52 HA$R 77 1& 570,000,000/ 7T M3 1 &
by charges over client securities with market value of 153,698,000/ 7T 2 & P B A e 1EHE R
HK$153,698,000. The remaining balance represented ﬁ?TZﬁ%%ﬁTE,ﬂTﬁﬁfETﬂ HoZFR
unsecured bank borrowings. These bank borrowings carried TEFRNEEENTEBRITRAERE
interest with a range of HIBOR+1.3% p.a. to HIBOR+2.3% 7Ju1.3%ii5,%fﬁ TR ZE v B 012.3%,2
p.a. (2016: HIBOR+1.5% p.a. to HIBOR+2% p.a.). (2016%F - HARITRFEFEIN S5%EES

RITRIZEFE 2% ) °

All the banking facilities granted to the Group are subject to REEEEMBRITRIE XA A RMIRTT
guarantees given to the banks by the Company. VEH I ERAR -

27. BONDS ISSUED 27. 2 R1TES

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET

Current i

Corporate bonds — Open offer (note (a)) AREH— N HEE
(Miat(a))

Corporate bonds — Placing (note (a)) NEESF-BE (Mit(a))

@

303,019
303,020

Non-current FERE
Corporate bonds — Placing AREMEF-BEE
(note (b)) (K15t b))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

27. BONDS ISSUED (continued)

(a)

On 27 November 2013, the Group issued corporate bonds in
principal amount of HK$303,033,500 by way of open offer and
of HK$303,033,500 by way of placing respectively. The bonds
carry a fixed annual interest rate of 5.5% with a maturity period
of 3 years, and the interest will be paid annually in arrears on 27
November in each year with the first interest payment date on 27
November 2014. Pursuant to the respective bond instruments of
the aforesaid corporate bonds, the Group may, at any time, before
the maturity date of the bonds, redeem the bonds by giving not
less than 10 business days written notice at 100% of the principal
amount of such bonds together with payment of interest accrued
thereon up to the date of redemption. The directors considered
that such early redemption option of the bonds was not separated
from the bonds since the economic characteristics and risks of
such early redemption option were closely related to the economic
characteristics and risks of the bonds. Subject to the conditions of
the respective bond instruments of the aforesaid corporate bonds,
the bondholder(s) shall not have the right to request the Company
to redeem the bonds prior to the maturity date of the bonds. The
Company redeemed the bonds in full during the current year.

During the current year, the Company has issued (i) two (2016:
eight) tranches of the corporate bonds under the placing agreement
dated 15 March 2016 for bonds issuing with an aggregate principal
amount of up to HK$1,200 million (the “Bonds Placing of HK$1,200
million”) and (ii) a corporate bond under the placing agreement
dated 14 November 2016 for bonds issuing with an aggregate
principal amount of up to HK$400 million (the “Bonds Placing of
HK$400 million”) in principal amount totalling HK$611.7 million
(2016: HK$909.5 million) and US$2.1 million (2016: US$8 million)
(equivalent to approximately HK$16.3 million (2016: HK$62 million)).

As at 30 September 2017, the non-current portion of outstanding
corporate bonds balances of HK$1,589 million (2016: HK$964
million) represent the ten (2016: eight) tranches of the corporate
bonds issued under the Bonds Placing of HK$1,200 million and a
corporate bond issued under the Bonds Placing of HK$400 million,
including an aggregate principal amount of Hong Kong Dollar bonds
of approximately HK$1,521 million (2016: HK$910 million) and an
aggregate principal amount of U.S. Dollar bonds of US$10.1 million
(2016: US$8 million) (equivalent to approximately HK$78 million
(2016: HK$62 million)). Except for the bonds of principal amount of
HK$400 million, which were issued on 9 December 2016 under the
Bonds Placing of HK$400 million with a fixed annual interest rate
of 5%, the remaining bonds dominated in Hong Kong dollars and
US dollars issued under Bonds Placing of HK$1,200 million carry
a fixed annual interest rate of 5.25% and 4.5% respectively with a
maturity period of 3 years from the issue date, and the interest will
be paid annually in arrears with the first interest payment date on
the first anniversary date after bond issuance. Pursuant to the bond
instrument of both bonds placing abovementioned, the Group may,
at any time, before the maturity date of the bonds, redeem the bonds
by giving not less than 10 business days written notice at 100%
of the principal amount of such bonds together with payment of
interest accrued thereon up to the date of redemption. The directors
considered that such early redemption option of the bonds was
not separated from the bonds since the economic characteristics
and risks of such early redemption option were closely related to
the economic characteristics and risks of the bonds. Subject to the
conditions of the bond instrument, the bondholder(s) shall not have
the right to request the Company to redeem the bonds prior to the
maturity date of the bonds.

27. BEB1TEHR (&)

(@)

(b)

R2013F 118278  NEBE D B LA AF B
& R 5 R 31742 %8303,033,500/8 7T
12303,033,500/8 7L 2 R EMESH - EFHIEE
TEF R 5% B mmiA=F mF
BIRERSEN I A278 X & @R
B HA2014F11 27 1815 Fl A RE
F 2 ABESE ALBEA R EHFEH
HRIBER S BE LN OM0EEERZE
ERMIEEBESF RS T 2100%E B 8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. R

Nominal value of

ordinary shares
LEkmEE

2017 2016 2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each
BREE0.OIET . EBREE

Authorised:

At beginning of year FH 500,000,000,000 5,000,000
At end of year FIR 500,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BT REUE:

At beginning of year F4 5,747,945,724 57,479
Issue of shares IR 380,000,000 3,800
At end of year Fx 6,127,945,724

On 18 May 2016, the Company announced a subscription
of 380,000,000 new shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.66 per subscription share (the “1t Subscription”)
by an independent corporate. The 1t Subscription was
completed on 31 May 2016 with 380,000,000 subscription
shares being issued. After deducting the expenses in
connection with the 1t Subscription, the net proceeds
raised were approximately HK$250.8 million.

On 1 December 2016, the Company announced
a subscription of 612,900,000 new shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.66 per subscription share
(the “2n Subscription”) by an independent corporate.
The 2" Subscription was completed on 14 December
2016 with 612,900,000 subscription shares being issued.
After deducting the expenses in connection with the 2
Subscription, the net proceeds raised were approximately
HK$404.5 million.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The net proceeds raised on 31 May 2016 were used as
working capital for expansion of the Group’s existing
businesses, especially for the money lending (including
commercial and personal lending as well as margin and IPO
financing) and asset management businesses; repayment
of outstanding loans; and to finance any future business
opportunities to be identified by the Company.

The net proceeds raised on 14 December 2016 were used
for expansion of the money lending businesses of the
Group, which include commercial and personal lending
as well as margin and IPO financing, and repayment of
outstanding loans.

The directors of the Company considered the net proceeds
raised have been utilised in accordance to the planned use
and there is no unutilised balance as at 30 September 2017
and 2016.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 20
September 2007 (which became effective on 27 September
2007 and was then amended on 13 August 2013) (“2007
Share Option Scheme”) has lapsed automatically in
September 2017 upon expiry of the 10-year period.
Following the expiry of the 2007 Share Option Scheme, no
further share options can be granted thereunder.

In order to ensure the continuity of a share option scheme
for the Company to provide incentives or rewards to
participants (including the Directors and eligible employees
of the Group), the shareholders of the Company passed
an ordinary resolution at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 26 January 2017 to approve the adoption
of a new share option scheme of the Company (“2017 Share
Option Scheme”). No share options were granted under the
2017 Share Option Scheme since its effective date on 27
January 2017.

28.

29.

A (42)

R2016F5A31B £ 2 MEHIBFEE
ArEEBES NBRRAEBIRBER L
EREREYS (DREEERBAETUAR
FEEEAAFBRBME) REEEREHE
% EEREER: RAKRAREHZIE
MEBREBKSENES-

R2016F 12 A 14B &5 2 TS FUE SRR
ARBEAEB ZERES BIEREK
BAEFTARFERE X ARBREE X
EEREER-

KABIEEBRE EEZBHRIBEFEET
RIETZI R E R BR20174F R20164
9A30H I ER B FHEREE -
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
A summary of the 2007 Share Option Scheme and the
2017 Share Option Scheme (collectively “the Share Option
Schemes”) is set out as follows:

1.

Purpose of the Share Option Schemes

To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full-

time or part time, including Non-executive Directors)
and such other eligible participants.

Shares available for issue under the 2017 Share
Option Scheme

(i) Total number of shares: 674,084,572 shares as
at 7 December 2017 (i.e. the date of this Annual
Report).

(ii) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents:
10% as at 7 December 2017.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the 2007 Share Option Scheme and 2017
Share Option Scheme

(i) in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the shares in
issue in any 12-month period unless approved by
the shareholders; and

(i) options granted to substantial shareholders or
Independent Non-executive Directors or their
respective associates in any 12-month period
exceeding the higher of 0.1% of the shares in
issue and with an aggregate value in excess
of HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option
At any time from the date of grant of the option to such

a date determined by the Board but in any event no
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
Board.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 29. BRAE (&)

7. (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of

7. (i) RERHEABBIESENZE

the option: HK$1.00; #:1.008 7T

(i) The period within which payments or calls must (i) WAZESKA] BEME NS Rk B AT
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of ,TAE’J,HHBE& A% A BkeEt28H
grant; A

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

8. Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject
to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
offer date; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.

9. The remaining life of the 2017 Share Option Scheme:
Approximately 9 years (expiring on 26 January 2027).

During the year ended 30 September 2017, no option was
granted, exercised or cancelled under the Share Option
Schemes.

(i) W EMBHNREBEANHE B
ERNHIR: NER -

8. THEEZEEEXE:

TTEEREREET (A THE) I
HEMER (IR 1 B 4) B BB 32 P
ARERHRZWHE : (iinmn
EREZN AR A S5 A RB A PT
FAMERMRZ FHRTE : Kii)
—Bif 2EHE (AEReESE) -

9. 2017FBEREHE ZHTEY:
#994F (FA2027F1 A26H f@im) °

MRBE2017FIA30R LFE - B ER
%Eﬁﬂﬂ%%%ﬂﬁﬁ TR B RE $H B X
Eo

As at 1 October 2015, the outstanding share options under R2015F10H1H 2007 F B %
the 2007 Share Option Scheme were 131,018,772 with the BHABEBETZHRITEBRER
exercise price of HK$0.247 per share (note (a)), which 131,018,77215 B IR 171 (8 50.247
included the share options of 57,657,012 and 73,361,760 % 7t (Mt i(a)) KB 1E57,657,012(0

with the pre-determined vesting conditions as disclosed
in note (c)(i) and (ii) respectively. The estimated fair
values of these outstanding share options of 57,657,012
and 73,361,760 under the 2007 Share Option Scheme at
their date of grant of 13 August 2013 were approximately
HK$5,676,000 each.

During the year ended 30 September 2016, none of the
outstanding share options of 131,018,772 granted under the
2007 Share Option Scheme with exercise price of HK$0.247
per share were exercised as the pre-determined vesting
conditions as disclosed in note (c) were confirmed not
being fulfilled based on the publication of the annual results
announcement for the year ended 30 September 2015
on 9 December 2015. These outstanding share options
lapsed on 10 December 2015. No further share options
under the 2007 Share Option Scheme were granted after 10
December 2015 and up to prior year end.

No share-based payment expenses have been recognised
in both current and prior year since the vesting conditions
have not been fulfilled and lapsed in prior year.

}%73,361,7601% ,\%H HZ2ATESFBIK
159 B4 58 5 B 5F (c) (i) K (ii) » 2007
FREMKAEEITET 257,657,012 &
73,361,76017 M RIT{E R 1 2 fhar A
EEMR2016F8A13EHZE HE Y A4
5,676,000% 7T

H E2016%F9H308 It F E - #R152007
FRRESRE 2131,018,7720 F
%ﬁﬁf‘io.mﬁémzr'ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁx%
BB e AN ER2015%F 124
9H % 7 8, 2015930 It E &
CEEBES MFC)WBEZETERBIE
HERAERIEEN - ZEFEHARITERER
ER2015F 128108 B & i » 722015
F12A10BREE F—FEXRTERE
2007 FEE PR RERT B — 20 I BB AR A o

PP B B IR AP I B — ifﬂiﬁ%LE}ZEF
o WERNAFER N E—FERERN
N ZFx e
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

29. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The exercise price had been adjusted from HK$0.334 to HK$0.247
with the effect of the rights issue during the year ended 30
September 2015 in accordance with the terms of the 2007 Share
Option Scheme.

The fair value of options granted under the 2007 Share Option
Scheme were calculated using the Black-Scholes model with
Binomial Tree method. The inputs into the models are as follows:

Share price at date of grant HK$0.335
Exercise price HK$0.334
Expected volatility 54.36%
Expected life of years 4.92 years
Risk free rate 1.10%
Expected dividend yield 2.65%

50% of the shares that are issued pursuant to the exercise of the
share option, shall be subject to a lock-up period of 6 calendar
months from the relevant exercise date and the remaining 50%
shall be subject to a lock-up period of 12 calendar months from
the relevant exercise date. During the lock-up period, no share
issued upon exercise of the share option is allowed to be traded,
transferred, pledged or charged.

Expected volatility was estimated by the historical daily volatility
of the share prices of the Company. The expected life used in the
model has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model has been used to estimate
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions used
in computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
executive directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

Subject to the fulfillment of the pre-determined vesting conditions, the
share options were originally exercisable from the date immediately
after the publication of the audited financial results of the Group for
the year ended 30 September 2014 to 12 July 2018. In accordance
with the pre-determined vesting conditions, the exercise period has
been changed to commencing on the date immediately after the
publication of the audited financial results of the Group for the year
ended 30 September 2015 to 12 July 2018.

(i)  Out of the outstanding share options of 131,018,772, share
options of 57,657,012 were subject to achievement of target net
profit for the financial year 2014, or achievement of cumulative
target net profit for the financial years 2014 and 2015.

(i)  Out of the outstanding share options of 131,018,772, share
options of 73,361,760 were subject to achievement of target net
profit for the financial year 2015, or achievement of cumulative
target net profit for the financial years 2014 and 2015.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 B 5 A i
For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

30. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 30. R K& 5t &

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Funds Ordinance in December 2000.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of independent
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO
Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme were
offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required
to join the MPF Scheme.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to
7% of the employee's basic salary, depending on the length
of service with the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme with maximum
cap at HK$1,500, which contribution is matched by the
employee.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the profit or loss
represent contributions payable to the funds by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Where there
are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

At 30 September 2016 and 30 September 2017, no forfeited
contributions arose upon employees leaving the ORSO
Scheme.

AEE R 2 EBBEEEBERIKGTEIE
Bl 2 ERE A FRETE ([BERNETE])
NFR2000F 12 ARIBER ARSI A E ST
EHEGIR ZaaEE A TES 2 ([RFES
FTEl]) SR ECEERASECBE
D WABYAEABTR 2 AT
B RS T BB AT BB EE AR 2
B 2 B BB IR E D B RIRET
2ok A2 MEEe TS 2000512
A1BSAEMEASE T AREEY
eI e ik

BERKTEZAREERAEREILZES
HERFE5%ET% 2 L RIBIERE BN AL
B 2 RIS R ALK o

BB EIZHKEMS  AEEIRIEH
HERAZS%MZAT AR &= LR A
1,500/ 7 - R B —Eo

KB HIRR 2 RINER AR T A SR B2
BRRTEIMAEE 2L RBRNZEES
Z K 5 A R B R BUR T AT
RHBSRIRET S RIS B R AR
AR WA AR -

H20165F9 A30H Kk201749A30H - if £
A BRI RINGTEIMEE Z U8 IK

K o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

M.AEALRS

()

these financial statements, the Group had the following

significant transactions with related parties:

BIK SRR K BB FTREL Y
ZHIN AEBEMEA ST TS
EARS:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(i) Corporate finance advisory (i) MEERBWREZ
services fee income from related rEREBMRBEERA
companies (notes 3 & 6) (B 5+3%6)
1,380
(i) Sharing of information system and (i) Fto1h &M EH M
administrative expenses paid and TBURE M E N &
payable to related companies BN THERRZER
(notes 2 & 6) (Htat2k6) 13,018
Management fee to a related LT —REAERRZ
company (notes 2 & 6) BB (Hit2ke) 298
(iii) Operating lease rentals expenses (i) MEEAF TN ELHE
to related companies (notes 3 & 6) Me (HiF3k6) 7,236
(iv) Commission and brokerage (iv) M THRERE k&L &
income from WA
- a related company ——HBEERA
(notes 3 & 6) (H17#3%6) 14
— directors of the Company —ARRBIZESE
(notes 1 & 3) (K1aE123) 4
(v) Placing and underwriting (v) RE—RH@EEQAZ
commission income from & REHEAE KA
a related company (notes 3 & 6) (Hit3k6) 162
(vi) Placing and underwriting (Vi) AIRRAI—BEEZR
commission expenses to a director BEAZNEE R
of the Company and associates BHEALS T
(notes 1 & 3) (Hat1k3) 7,020
(vii) Printing, advertising and promotion (vii) [A) B8 & A & 37 1+ Nl «
expenses to related companies BEREEEHR
(notes 2 & 6) (Htaz2k6) 1,900

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o A R F

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 31.

(a) (continued)

(viii)Accounts payable to margin and  (vii) R BB 5 B & %54 2 S
cash clients arising from business FREREEP ZEMNEK
of dealing in securities by BN

— an associate (notes 2 & 4) ——M[tE R A
(Kiat2f4)

— directors of the Company —ARRAZES
(notes 1 & 2) (Hat1k2)

BEALRS (&
(a) (#&)

2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$'000

TETT THEIT

(ix) Rental and other deposits paid to
related companies (notes 5 & 6)

(ix)

mEEARSNEE RE
ik ® (HiE5%6)

Notes:
(1) For the transactions with the director(s) of the Company,
the directors include a director who is one of the eligible
beneficiaries of the AY Trust, a trust set up by Dr. Albert Yeung
who is the deemed controlling shareholder of the Company.

(2) These transactions are connected transactions exempted
from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders'

approval requirements under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules.

These transactions are disclosable continuing connected
transactions (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules) of the Company which details have been set out in
the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
under “Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts and Connected Continuing Transactions” of the
Directors’ Report. The directors confirmed that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

)

4

The associate company of the Group is disclosed in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Hiaz -

¥
el

IRRRIERETZRSM
CEEREEBAY Trust (RBHELT
ZAEFE MiSIE LR AR QR]
TRBRE)EBERIHAZ—ZE

o

(1

\

5 Kb

]

%N%m%

(2) EKREMRANE14A3MG ZERD
BREERD ERRETER D&

KBS CR A 2 FRE -

HERSBAAR AT RESER
B2 5 (ERE LMHBIEI4AT)
HERNEESRENEERR
5 RHRANRBERER S 2
R T HEmERS] —Hh
BRAATDIRE L HRAF14AE
BT RBEE -

()

ZHE R R RSP BERRMET7
B8 SE L PN

(4)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 31.BBEALTXRE (&

(a) (continued) (@) (%)

Notes: (continued) Wit (&)

(5) This amount represents refundable rental deposits paid for the (5) ZEaHEREFEREIESENX
continuing connected transactions as set out in item 1 of the 5 RHKENORFERERH 2
section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” under wml T RHERERS] —BREE
“Directors” Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts I ERAER SN 2 RRIHEE
and Connected Continuing Transactions” of the Director's Be e
Report.

(6) The related companies are controlled by the AY Trust. (6) FZERFE N FIAHAY TrustFTiz o

(b) The compensation to directors and key management (b) ESRTEEEAE ZMERMIEEO

personnel was disclosed in notes 9 and 10. RAOAHE R o

32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 2. KEHEAE
At the end of each of the reporting periods, the Group REMERR REBERBHAMER
had commitments for future minimum lease payments WA AR EEET BB
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office IR S RIE 2 AHE - BT HIEN 215
premises and office equipment which fall due as follows: M UENE

2017 2016
Rental Hired Rental Hired
premises equipment premises equipment

RENE A HENZ HARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TERT TR TET

Within one year —F R 6,934 51
In the second to fifth years FE_EZERF

inclusive (BREEREMF) 5,359 28

12,293 79
For office premises and office equipment, leases are mainly MW RMERPBAZRENS HHOETER
negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of two ERREE - e HEE - FHBOBRM
years. Fo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fo o S 5 ¥ e B

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

33. SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 33. XA R BERBE

COMPANY

Non-current assets

Investment in a subsidiary

2017
HK$'000
TBTT

FERBEE
R—HENBRARZERE

Current assets MENEE
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR AR
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE I B A R 2 B
Subordinated loan due from a JEU—FEM B AR ZBEER
subsidiary
Other assets HEMEE
Current liabilities mEaE
Other creditors and accrued charges HEmEANERRETEA
Tax liabilities MIBEE
Bonds issued BEBITES
Net current assets MENEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities EEBERTDAER
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE
Bonds issued BEBITES
Net assets EEFE
Capital and reserves BAR R #EE
Share capital AR AR
Reserves 18
Total equity (Note) a5 (M)

2016
HK$'000
THIT

219,003

17,5632
3,409,256

1,050,000
83

4,476,871

42,898
14,129
605,085

662,112
3,814,759

4,033,762

953,820

3,079,942

61,279
3,018,663

3,079,942

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

33. SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 33. AA T BEREME (4Z)

COMPANY (continued)
Note: Bt it -
Share Share Special Retained
capital premium reserve profits
R R Rl R & T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET FHET
At 1 October 2015 #2015F10A1H 57,479 2,539,240 101,953 36,238 2,734,910
Profit for the year FERF - - - 259,735 259,735
Total comprehensive income FEZE2EWZBEE
for the year - - - 259,735 259,735
Dividend recognised as RIED I Z AR B
distribution - - - (165,501) (165,501)
Issue of shares BIIRG 3,800 246,998 - - 250,798
At 30 September 2016 7201699 A30H 61,279 2,786,238 101,953 130,472 3,079,942
Profit for the year FERH - - 135,240 135,240
Total comprehensive income FEz2EREBE
for the year - - 135,240 135,240
Dividend recognised as BWRIED K ZIRE
distribution - - (179,305) (179,305)
Issue of shares BTG 6,129 398,385 - - 404,514
At 30 September 2017 A201769H30H 67,408 3,184,623 101,953 86,407 3,440,391

BRIEBIEA QNGB AR B BT B
2 EEEAQTIRIER2007F4R28 2 &
ESEARWE —HNB AR M7 2D
EEMZ =8

Special reserve represents the difference between nominal
value of the ordinary shares of the subsidiaries of the
Company in issue and the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company for acquisition of a subsidiary
pursuant to a group reorganisation on 2 April 2007.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30
September 2016 and 2017 are as follows:

4. T EME QT
E/\2016¢&2017$9H30EI AT FEMH
NEZHEINT

Name of subsidiary

Place of

incorporation/

operation

Issued and fully
paid capital

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share
capital held
by the Company
Z 1

30‘9.2017 30. 9 2016
20175 20165
9H30H 9H30H

% %

Principal activities

IZ

Emperor Asset Management Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 100 Provision of asset
Limited % 7,000,0007% 7T management services
KR EEERARAR RIREERES
Emperor Capital Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100 Provision of corporate finance
HKERMERRAH 0 10,000,000/ 1T advisory services
RECEREBRIRE
Emperor Capital (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 Provision of promotion and
REBHPEEKBRAA % 100,000 75 marketing services in the
PRC
RPERH{EER
mEEERS
Emperor Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Provision of money lending
EERBERAA Bk BT services
REERRS
Emperor Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100 Provision of futures brokerage
REMERRAF 36 50,000,000/ 7 services
REHEELRE
Emperor Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$520,000,000 100 Provision of securities
REFF (FB)ERAA B 520,000,000 7 brokerage services and
margin financing services
REBFELRE R
HRBERY
Emperor Securities Nominees Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$2 100 Provision of securities
5 2B nominee services
REFFRBARS
Emperor Capital Group Limited REBHEBEFRATF 147
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 4. T EMEBELT (&

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of issued share
incorporation/ Issued and fully capital held
Name of subsidiary operation paid capital by the Company Principal activities
y BZEET
K <1 BIIRBREAR & fl FEXK
30.9.2017 30.9.2016
201745 2016F
9A30R 9A30R
Emperor Wealth Management Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$6,500,000 100 Provision of insurance and
HENEEERRAA Bk 6,500,000/ 7 other brokerage services

RRELR IR B H AL R R A

EERZA(L8)BRAR! People’s Republic HK$1,000,000 100 Business development
of China 1,000,000/ T in the PRC
R AREAE RAEETERERE
HEREFA (AR BRAA People’s Republic HK$1,000,000 100 Business development in the
of China 1,000,0007% 7T PRC
REARLAE RABEETEBER
wmeREEH Y ERAT People’s Republic HK$500,000 100 Business development in the
of China 500,000/ 7 PRC
PEARKAE BT EBEE
# The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise. # ZEWBARIINEBE -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company EREINATEER AT EFEAEFEE
which, in the opinion of the executive directors, principally BESEEFEZ2AREIMBAR -
affected the results or net assets of the Group.
To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the WITESERA SRS ENB AR S
executive directors, result in particulars of excessive length. BYREANIILE-
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities RAFERIANFREANZ AAEH ZE
outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time during the WEBARBEERRERE 2 EBHBES-
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 B 5 A i
For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT B.EXEABEE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital
structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
short-term bank borrowings, bonds issued as disclosed in
respective notes, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves as
set out on the consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and respective
notes. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from
the prior year.

The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with the share capital. In view of this, the Group manages
its overall capital structure through the drawdown and
repayment of bank borrowings, payment of dividends and
issue of share capital.

Several subsidiaries of the Group (the “Regulated
Subsidiaries”) are registered with Securities and Futures
Commission (“SFC”) for the business they operate in.
The Regulated Subsidiaries are subject to liquid capital
requirements under Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted by the SFC. Under
the SF(FR)R, the Regulated Subsidiaries must maintain
their liquid capital in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of their
total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. The required
information is filed with SFC on a monthly basis.

Another subsidiary of the Group is a member of the
Professional Insurance Brokers Association Limited and
is required to maintain a minimum net asset value of
HK$100,000 at all times.

AREEREER  HRRAEE B
B BE RSB E B E  ARE
BT R SRR TR 2 B9
Bl ARE Y EALBOEES (5
SEE BRI BT ES (UnE K
SEFTRER ) AR A VA AR (0t
BARBIRRE HARSEDEREE
W3 ALY B BTIRA R AR ) ) - A
T BEEW A FERGRTE

BIEEEBEBEARKA KA R R
WETE NGRS - A - ANEEEEIRE
KMEERITER  IARBMETRAE
EHRBEARRE-

AEBETHBLAR ([ZHREHBRA])
REEEBEEERNELFRPEEKE
REEE ([FEG])EER -ZREMNBA
RIBBTEESMREMNEFHLE (B
B&R)MRE| ([SFFRIR ) ZimEE AR
TE o BIESF(FRIR TR B B A BB
1% % 2 i B) & £ #8383,000,0007% 7t ok 15
E2EABRAERE IS (UBSE R
) FIMTEERHZ AMEESRR -

AEBZ Z—HHB AR AREZERBEL
e 2K E  WHERAREREFRIE
& EE F{E100,000/8 7T ©
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For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categories of financial instruments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. €@ T H
SRITE>ER

2016
HK$'000
TAET

2017
HK$'000

TET

8,147,024

Financial assets SEMEE

Loans and receivables (including bank & 2 & & W 8 3%
balances and cash) (BERTEHREES)

Financial liabilities cRAE

Amortised cost - E T IDWIN

3,725,885

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale investment, other debtors and deposits, accounts
receivable, loans and advances, amount due from an
associate, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, accounts payable, short term bank borrowings,
bonds issued and other creditors. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

TREREEREEREE (&)

(continued)

Market risk 745 B B

Currency risk B
P

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements
in foreign exchange rates relating to receivable from and
payable to foreign brokers and foreign currency deposits
with banks. The management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
exchange exposure should the need arises.

It is the Group's policy for each operating entity to
operate in local currencies as far as possible to minimise
currency risks. Most of the Group’s principal businesses
are conducted and recorded in Hong Kong dollar, the
functional currency of respective group entities, except for
certain receivables from and payable to foreign brokers
and bank deposits which are denominated in Australian
dollar, United States dollar, Renminbi, Japanese Yen and
Singapore dollar (see notes 21, 23 and 24 for details). The
executive directors of the Company considered that the
effect of currency risk is insignificant as the Group has
minimal exposure in Australian dollar, Renminbi, Japanese
Yen and Singapore dollar and there is the linked exchange
rate system of Hong Kong dollar against United States
dollar. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis in relation to
foreign currency exposure has been carried out by the
management.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate accounts receivable, bank
balances, loans and advances, bank borrowings and
accounts payable.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly relating to
the fluctuation of best lending rate arising from the Group’s
accounts receivable and loans and advances and market
savings interest rate arising from the Group’s bank balances
and accounts payable. The Group’s exposure to interest
rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed
below.

B[R A BN MR TIRIME AL 2
AR INEE SR1T 17 30 B8 22 & NEE B = AR

B WA B BEIPEARINERLR °

AEERSELEERRNZBRDER
REAE M EBZE  SINERE R &/ ME
AEEZAZHIZEBABT(REE
EERZEER) ETRAR S TE
Yo B eI RSN A 2 BR AR S BRI T T R A R
7T & ARM - HE R s ITAHER
ON (FFIE RBEER21 - 23%24) ° AN A BFALT
EXZRA ARAEEET  AR% B
Bl K3 T T 2 R B AR ETT R
SETTHNA 2 [ RS - SN L e O R A K
BEAYE At EBELERINER LA
TTIERIBURE DT

EST
74 85 B T 507 B0 i B 30 24T 4
# - B BB - BRI AR B B
CHEEREREAR-

AEBZHEeRENXAREIZEHAE
B2 FRUSR R M B M R PTELE 2 1B
BE R R A LB IRTT AR S BRI
PREESE < TG REE N RN B - REE T
Rz eRmEEERABZMNEARFL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o A R F

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
Financial instruments bearing variable interest rates in nature:

36. ¢RI T H (&)
tREREEEEREEK (&)

w5 ()
FEm g (&
HERFSHMEME 2T A:

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TATT

Assets BE
Accounts receivable JE W2 AR R 4,329,658
Loans and advances ERRBK 40,791
Bank balances RITAE B 381,567
Liabilities B{E
Accounts payable FE TR 1,048,013
Short-term bank borrowings RHIRITIER 550,000

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period and it is assumed that the amount of the above
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period
was in existence for the whole year and all other variables
were held constant throughout the respective year. A 50
basis point (2016: 50 basis point) change represents
management's assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates in respect of variable rate accounts
receivable, loans and advances, bank balances, accounts
payable and short term bank borrowings.

HK$'000
TET

MERYREE

T2 HRED N TIRIBR RE IR 2 F
RE T AKETE - W RRN IR E HR Lt
BEMBESENEF EFENMTEH
EENSBFE —BERTE - 50fEE
1 (20165 : SOMEER ) BB 15 12 ol /¥
BN R 7 RIRARRR B R B SR1THE
5 RN ARS8 HRERTT(E R R R & 18
AIREREE) 2 FF A -

2017 2016
Change in basis points Change in basis points
HEY ER%y

-50 +50 -50
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET AT AT

RERBBRETEM D)

Increase (decrease) in profit
after tax for the year

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the market interest rate risk as the year
end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fok T S R P

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at
30 September 2017 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has a delegated team to compile the credit and
risk management policies, to approve credit limits and to
determine any debt recovery action on those delinquent
receivables. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the executive directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong. The Group has no
significant concentration of credit risk by any single debtor
as the exposure is spread over a number of individual and
institutional customers, except for the loans and advances
and accounts receivable as disclosed in notes 20 and 21.

Details of analysis of the credit risk exposure of loans and
advances and accounts receivable are disclosed in notes
20 and 21.

Bank balances are placed in various authorised institutions
and the executive directors of the Company consider the
credit risk for such instruments is minimal.

Liquidity risk

Internally generated cash flow and bank borrowings are the
sources of funds to finance the operations of the Group.
The majority of the Group's banking facilities are subject
to floating rate and are renewable annually. The Group's
liquidity risk management includes making available
standby banking facilities and diversifying the funding
sources. The Group regularly reviews the major funding
positions to ensure adequate financial resources are
available to meet their respective financial obligations.

As at 30 September 2017, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$2,090
million (2016: HK$1,655 million).

TREREEREEREE (&)

=EmREE (&

fid 5 S 77 REEIEITIRF 2 BAE - R20174F
9ABHALKER SR HATMEER
EEe 2 ZAEERR RS MR RKPT
L RFEEZREE S EERR &
My REBEEERR—XEF BER
BREEMEAREERBRR  UEEERE
Ko BETE B34 S HE R R W AR SR B (] W R
T8 o s REE R W& BRI & (A
R FEMRFR 2 AT I [ 2 58 PARE (R BL DA
Y& B SR IE VR H 2 5080 (B &S 18 254 o Lt
B ARBMTEERARAREZEER
B JEE K P 1K o

AEERMHB D 2 ST EERAREIER
BB o ARE EPME B —RUWARRE
BEREFEERR I HRER D BRE
ZEABARBBEEP M E20R21KE
ZER MBI EIIR KRN o

RN BN RN AR F T R < (E B R

=7
DB 720 R 214 B ©

RITHERTDTF RN RIE RS - T A
NRAMITEERRZETIAZEERARE
i o

B ELEME
NEELR DM E RIRTTERA BN AE
BEEMBEZESHIR NEBZKZ 8
RITRE R I B ERMRRINFFT
NEE -AEBZRBEZREREERE
BISAI B A 2 BRARITRE LS E S HIR
AL AERETE BRI ERE SN
AR A S R A B IR - AEN R E
BEEZHBEE-

201789 A30H  AEBE A n] &) A i 14
KRAE R 2 R 17 R & #92,090,000,00078 JT
(20164F : 1,655,000,0005% 7T ) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.2 T HEH (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies SRRAKBEEEERBE (&£
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) nBEEMRE (&)
The amounts disclosed in the table below are the TREBZSEREHRMRRERE -
contractual undiscounted cash flows. The table includes ZERBEMNBREERER=E-

both interest and principal cash flows.

Liquidity table RBESR
Repayable Over Over
on demand 3 months 1 year
or less than to
3 months 5 years
RIREK =G —E0E
‘ ZRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT THT
30 September 2017 201749A30A
Accounts payable JE 1R X 2,214,913 - - 2,214,913
Other creditors and accrued charges ~ EfENEZ L EER
(excluding bonds interest) (FREEHAL) 51,944 - - 51,944
Bonds issued (including bonds interest) ZE1TE# (BEEHFTE) 31,847 50,539 1,713,707 1,796,093
Short-term bank borrowings (note) BRERITRE R () 328,663 - - 328,663
2,627,367 50,539 1,713,707 4,391,613
Repayable Over Over
on demand 3 months 1 year
or less than to to
3 months 1 year 5 years Total
=AML —EN0E
ARER 2—F ZRF et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET THT BT BT
30 September 2016 201697308
Accounts payable JE T BR R 1,548,570 - - 1,548,570
Other creditors and accrued charges ~ EfENEZ L& ER
(excluding bonds interest) (FREEHHE) 46,134 - - 46,134
Bonds issued (including bonds interest) B#{1E# (BEEHFIE) 639,401 50,539 1,072,578 1,762,518
Short-term bank borrowings (note) REBITER(MH) 550,241 - - 550,241
2,784,346 50,539 1,072,578 3,907,463
1 54 Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 7 B 5 A i

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

36. 2R ITHE (&)

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Note: Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the 'repayable on demand or less than 3 months' time band in
the maturity analysis. As at 30 September 2017, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank borrowings
amounted to HK$328,511,000 (2016: HK$550,000,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At
that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to HK$328,663,000 (2016: HK$550,241,000).

As at 30 September 2017, the amounts of
HK$2,418,511,000 (2016: HK$2,205,000,000) for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts the Group
could be required to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount to its subsidiaries if that amount is
claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the Group
considers that it is more likely than not that no amount will
be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held
by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

TREREEREEREE (&)

REELRERE (&

MeF: BHEERERKEEKRAZRITER
Thst AR DM 2 [ER Bk =@
BREE AR -R2017F9A°
30R RERTERZAMEAS
4 %8 5328,511,000/8 7T (20164 ¢
550,000,000/ 70) & E BEAEE 2 8
BN BERABITRRAIEITER
BREERTAEE - EEHEZERT
BRESTREERBEATHEER
BEEEZE B A& RFEZBEER
H 48 5815 /5328,663,0005% 7T (20164 :
550,241,000/ 7T ) °

72017F9A30H * & #£2,418,511,000/8 7T
(20164 : 2,205,000,0007 7T ) 2 B IS &R
BHEBARERZEHEREZNEBR
HE  AEBIRIEL PR LA 18 2 BUE
REBENTFTEMNBRARAZESERE R
BREHRZER ~EBR A ARE
LRSS FRIE 2 R BE MR K o AT -
ZEFTFEE S BUARSEEBRYH
EWER R 2 ¥ B EEEEMRERE
2 Al BetE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o A R F

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value

Except as detailed in the following table, the executive
directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values:

As at 30 September 2017 R201759H30H

36. 2R THEH (&)

ATE

BRI TRFREIN RRATHITESRE
ARG ISR AR IR AR AR 2 25t
BEASRABEZREAERKREATEE
P

Carrying
amount

fRE B

Fair value
AFE
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
THET

1,694,969

Bond issued BEBTES
As at 30 September 2016 "R201659H30H
Bond issued BB®ITES

1,571,691

This liabilities are classified under Level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that covers similar financial instruments that are
either:

e offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position; or

e not offset in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC") and brokers, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the
same settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a
net basis.

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o A R F
For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €I A (&)

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting
(continued)

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off the accounts receivable and payable with brokerage
clients that are due to be settled on the same date and the
Group intends to settle these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the
same date which are being offset, amounts due from/to
HKSCC, dealers, brokers and brokerage clients that are not
to be settled on the same date, financial collateral including
cash and securities received by the Group, deposit placed
with HKSCC and brokers do not meet the criteria for
offsetting in the consolidated statement of financial position
since the right of set-off of the recognised amounts is only

TRMEERERAEERS (&)

AN AN B AR R SR BT TRER
B X155 P HINER B HIZA T 2A
BEZ BB EEMERS MASEEER
FREEER I EGER

BRINAER B HIZA T AR B BAiliH 2 A8k
N W RN BB RE R HE FEA
K& i E s R P AW ENHRE B HI T oA
B2 7E e o (BREAE BRI
M RERFES) FRNEEEE RELD
AZBE W NFERERE MBI R AE
H2EE BN EER SRR HiEE
MER B EEOEIHRIT A RFIIT

enforceable following an event of default.

As at 30 September 2017 7201749H30H

Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts of
financial financial
Gross assets assets
amounts of set off in presented in
recognised  the statement  the statement
financial of financial of financial
assets position position
SRR

Related amounts not
set off in the statement

Collateral Net
received amount

Financial
instruments

B £RIA B RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 [ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAT BT TEL TEL FHET
Financial assets SREE
Amount due from clearing house, EREER R 50 BEAR
dealers, brokers and BEEBEPZNE
brokerage clients 5,149,026 (210,328) 4,938,698 (54,748) (4,716,008) 167,942
Deposit placed with clearing house ~ FHAEER 2 £ 46,641 - 46,641 - - 46,641
Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF] 1 57
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for 0 JA S e M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE20175F9 H30 A I F &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €T H (&)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting SHEERSRAERSE (2
(continued)
As at 30 September 2017 (continued) R2017%9A30R (4£&)

Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts of
financial financial
Gross liabilities liabilities

Related amounts not
set off in the statement
of financial position

R A

amounts of set off in presented in
recognised the statement the statement
financial of financial of financial Financial Collateral Net

liabilities position position instruments pledged amount

HK$'000 HK$'000

B T T
Financial liabilities SHEE
Amount due to clearing house, EREEM SEAR
brokers and brokerage clients BREBRFPINE 2,075,045 (210,328) 1,864,717 (54,748) - 1,809,969
As at 30 September 2016 7201659 H30H

Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts of
financial financial
Gross assets assets
amounts of set off in presented in
recognised the statement the statement
financial of financial of financial Financial Collateral Net

Related amounts not
set off in the statement

assets ition position instruments received amount

SRIA bk
HK$'000 0 HK$'000
Financial assets tREE
Amount due from clearing house, EUREER 2578 BEAR
dealers, brokers and BREBEFPITE
brokerage clients 4,594,121 (179,569) 4,414,552 (63,778) (3,989,929) 360,845
Deposit placed with clearing house FHREER &S 43,354 - 43,354 - - 43,354
1 58 Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for B B A M

For the year ended 30 September 2017 & ZE 201759 H30 A I F &

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 36. €T H (£Z)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting SREERSRAERSE (2
(continued)
As at 30 September 2016 (continued) #2016F9430H (#&

Gross
amounts of Net
recognised amounts of
financial financial

Related amounts not
set off in the statement
of f

Gross [EBINES liabilities
amounts of set off in presented in
recognised the statement the statement

financial of financial of financial Financial Collateral Net

liabilities position position instruments pledged amount
REBRR
ATt

BYERR
HK$'000
TR
Financial liabilities SHERE
Amount due to clearing house, EREER SEAR
brokers and brokerage clients BREBRFIFE 1,363,913 (179,569) 1,184,344 (63,778) - 1,120,566

Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFEHEE AR AF] 1 59
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
S 5 1B 22

Year ended 30 September

HZE9A30H ILFE
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FAT TAT
RESULT E4
Revenue A 434 804 546,408 835,077 986,215
Profit before taxation B 75 A 4 ) 186,958 269,127 519,634 634,264
Taxation #m (30,081)  (48,332)  (89,383)  (108,643)
Profit for the year ERE R 155977 220,795 430,251 525,621

As at 30 September
R9A30A

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TATT THET TAETT TAET THET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (ERE&E

Total assets EE®E 3,965,263 4,350,961 6,600,478 8,164,009

Total liabilities BERHE (2,580,182) (2,780,827) (2,961,574) (3,914,293)

Net assets BEFE 1,385,081 1,570,134 3,638,904 4,249,716
160 Emperor Capital Group Limited #REFHEEGRAF]
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